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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Maximus International Limited
Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Maximus International
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as of 31* March 2024, the
standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone
statement of cash flows, standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended and notes to
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31® March, 2024, its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the standalone financial statement.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the following key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

No

1. The Company has a substantial exposure in How the matter was addressed in our
investment and loan given to subsidiaries: audit;

- For the exposure in the Wholly Owned

E\% | The company has made Investment of Rs. | Subsidiaries Maximus  Global  FZE
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373.07 lakhs [AED 21.00 lakhs) and Rs. 74.38 {hereinafter referred to as "MGF") and
lakhs {USD 1.00 lakhs) and has given loan of MX Africa Limited (hereinafter MX
.- Rs. 277.91 lakhs (AED 12.25 lakhs) and Africa);

541.93 lakhs (USD 6.50 lakhs) in its wholly * We have evaluated the relevant

owned subsidiaries Maximus Global FZE terms and conditions agreed
{hereinafter referred to as "MGF") and MX between the parties, statutory
Africa Limited (hereinafter MX Africa) approval and filing for the same.

respectively. *» We have perused the audited
The above exposure to subsidiaries forms a financial statements of MGF and MX
substantial portion of the net worth of the Africa to assess the diminution, if
company. Refer note no 7 and & standalone any, of the investment and
financial statement. , recoverability of the loan as per

agreed terms,

* We have perused and taken on
record the management's
representation for the above related
to the future business plans of MGF
and MX Africa.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including annexures to
Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and shareholders information but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report therean. The above-referred information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions
necessitated by the circumstances & the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity & cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
~<wis 4 application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
" “and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls,
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that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so;

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
5 @ going concern;
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¢ Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation;

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matter:

Attention is drawn to the fact that the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by erstwhile auditors whose report dated 25th May 2023,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited standalone financial statements. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
g Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.




(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(e)

{h)
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The 5tandalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, standalone changes in equity and the Standalone Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31¢
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with
the requirement of section 197(16) of the act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has not paid

any managerial remuneration to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial pasition in
its financial statements, refer note no. 35.

The company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contract including
derivative contracts.

As per information and explanation given to us, there is no amount that reguired to be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Be neficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or

- Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
-'iﬂ.;g..f‘-bghalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

\
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security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e) as provided contain any material misstatement.

v.  There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence
provisions of section 123 of the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the

course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 1n33:4w1 _

—

(Daxal Pandya) {’ﬁ

Partner \5 e
MNo. 177345 = ~ITAST
UDIN: 24177345BKBFGO6311

Place: Vadodara
Date: 29-05-2024
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure-A, referred to in our Independent Auditors’” Report to the members of the Company |
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 21* March 2024, we report that,

i According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has maintained proper ]
{a)(A) records showing full particulars including the quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant &
Equipment.

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

i(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment’s (PPE) by which PPE are verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this
programme, PPE having substantial value were verified every three years as per the programme and
according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancy has been
noticed. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of its assets.

ifc) Based on our verification of the documents provided to us and according to the information and
explanations given by the Management, the title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) as disclosed in the financial statements as at
the Balance Sheet date.

i(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year and hence |
reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i{e) As disclosed in note no. 47 (i) of the standalone financial statement and as verified by us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder;

ii (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories have been physically
form verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and
the nature of its Inventories. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of
account.

ii (b) In our epinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company has
been sanctioned working capital limit exceeding limit of five crore rupees during the year under
consideration based on security of current assets, and the quarterly statement filed by the company
are generally in agreement with the books of accounts and no material discrepancies was observed.

iii The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee to, and granted unsecured loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, to other parties, during the year, in respect of

which
(a) The Company has provided loans to other parties during the year, are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
| Particulars Guarantees Loans
|| Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
=S N To Subsidiaries 13121 419.99
d f s},
&, 7|Page
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Total Others - L 133.@“
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases
Total Outstanding Subsidiaries 1312.11 819.84
Total Outstanding Others - 275.12

(b) In respect of the loans and advances granted in nature of loans, the terms & conditions of the
loans and advances are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(c}) With respect to loans & advances granted in nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and the payment of interest has been stipulated and the same is regular.

(d} In respect of loans & advances granted in nature of loan, there is no amount overdue for more
than 90 days.

[e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii)(f} is not applicable to the company.

Other than that, mentioned above, the company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any other advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties.

Based on our verification of the documents provided to us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to information & explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits and hence reporting under this
clause is not applicable,

vi

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records by the company under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013;

vii (a)

In our opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service tax, income tax, and other statutory dues as applicable to the appropriate
authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable with respect to above statutory dues in
arrears as of March 31, 2024, for a period of six months from the date they became payable except
for the Income tax of Rs. 1.79 Lakhs for FY 2020-21 & Rs. 11.78 Lakhs for FY 2022-23. However, the
said demand has been subsequently paid till date of this audit report

vii (b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues of referred in sub-clause (a) that has not been deposited on account of disputes except as
stated below;
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Amount Period to which | Forum where
(Rs. in | the amount | dispute is
lakhs) relates pending

Remarks, if
any

Name of | Nature of
the Statute | the dues

loint
Commissioner

SUQ#S Ta"d D;’";Z”d 44.21 FY 2017-18 (Appeals), State | NA
ervice [ax uss Gooils 2

Services Tax

(Out of the above demand, the company has already paid Rs. 5.46 Lakhs under protest.)

viii

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation provided to us, as disclosed in
note no. 47(vii) of the standalone financial statement, there were no transactions which were not
recorded in the books of account, that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

ix (a)

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation provided to us, the company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest therean
to any lender;

ix (b)

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation provided to us, as disclosed in
note no. 47 (ix) of the standalone financial statement, the company is not declared as willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

ix (c)

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the term loans
were applied for the purpose for which the said were obtained.

ix (d)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company
on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

ix (&)

According to the information and explanations given to us and overall examination of Standalone
financial statement, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

ix ()

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of the securities held in its subsidiaries and
accordingly the reporting under clause ix (f) is not applicable to the company.

x (a)

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the Company has
not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and accordingly the reporting under clause no. x(a) of the order is not applicable;

x (b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and
records of the Company examined by us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year
under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xi (a)

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither came across any incidence of fraud on or
by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of any such case
by the management;
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xi (b) No report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 i
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

xi(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

| i In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the Company is not
' a Nidhi company and accordingly the reporting under clause xii (a) to (c) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, all the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards;

xiv The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(a) & The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of this audit report, for the period

(b) under audit have been considered by us, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

XV In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and
accordingly the compliance under the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable;

xvi a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and records of
the Company examined by us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3{xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and records of
the Company examined by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

¢] As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and records of
the Company examined by us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under this clause
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year or in the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. However, there are no
objection or issues or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

Kix Based on our examination financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, there is no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date.

ARTA & - | We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
/ }AI_ «:_’; +| further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we

.l"lrr:
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IJ neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities if any falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall

due;
xxfa) in our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the provisions of
& Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to the company accordingly the reporting
x(b) under clause xx (a) and (b) of the order is not applicable to the company.
For Shah Mehta & Bakshi

Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 103824W)

o

i

(Daxal Ppandya) || Vo <od7
Partner L',
M No. 177345 N&req Acs!
UDIN: 24177345BKBFGO6311
Place: Vadodara

Date: 29" May 2024
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Annexure-B: Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub section 3 of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Maximus International
Limited (“the Company”} as of 31" of March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contrals system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

E "grh_n;actiuns and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
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transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31* March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103824wW
fcl/ e ; -. x.".
-"'—-1 '_r-'-L' bl I".T..
(Daxal Pandya) 2 iy
Partner e g

Membership No.: 1773450
UDIN: 24177345BKBFGO6311
Place: Vadodara

Date: 29-05-2024
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MAXIMUS INTERNATIOMAL LIMITED

CIN: L51900GI2015PLCDBS474

STANDALONE BALAMCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

ASSETS.

{1) |Non-current Assets
(2} Property, Plant and Equipment 4 199.82 132.24
(b) Investment Property 5 86.84 88.39
() Intangible Assets under Development 13 9.61 16.77
{d} Financial Assets
(i) Investrments 7 447,45 447.45
(i) Loans ] 1,094.25 955 (9
[iii} Other Financial Assats 3 187 1.87
|e} Deferred tax assets (net) 10 3.13 057
| {f} Other non current assets 11 4.61 278
{2} |Current assets
{a) Inventory 12 15.49 0.92
(b} Financial Assets
{i} Trade receivables 13 612.85 [ 191.51
(i) Cash and eash equivalents 14 10.79 4 146.45
{i#i) Bank balances other than (i} above : £
(iv) Other Financlal Assets 15 4393 | 7.55
{c] Other current assets 16 EE.63 I 3481
Total Assets 2,618.27 3 02541
(1] |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
[a} Equity Share capital 17 1,257.20 1,257.20
(b} Other Equity 18 245,32 23832
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,503.52 1,49552
LIABILITIES
{2) |Non-Current labilities
|{a) Einanciz| Lizbilities
(i} Barrowing 1% 491.92 453.20
(i) Lease Liabilities 20 174 897
{3} |Current liabilities
(=) Financizl Liabilities
(i} Barrowing 21 24791 8.58
(ia) Lease Liabilities 22 652 708
{ii} Trade payahies
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprizes 23 0.90 0.56
- total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 340,33 12.46
(i} Crther Firancial Liability 24 4.07 3138
{b) Other current liabilities 25 631 227
[c} Prowisions 25 147 1.05
{d) Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 27 13.58 25.21
Tatal Liabilitles 1,114.76 530.88
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,618.2] 026.4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements,
For 3hah Mehita & Bakshi For afd on Behalf of the Board o
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 103824
LR :"ﬁ T ' Milint Joshi Dipak Raval
'ﬁm —-? . 3‘;;’ = 4:; [Chief Financial Officer)  (Chairman and Managing
Pnal it . fen ,.' .'-'I' Directar)
Partner | El i VADCDA R.-'.'. = DiM: 01292764
Mernbership Mo. 177345 . \\ </ w’
Place: Vadodara e 3 \'--.f'??‘“- ’*J; ﬂﬁ"

Date: 25th May, 2024 s

Vinay Pandya Divya Prajapati

{independent Director) [Company Secretary)
[¥M: 08353328

Place: Vadodara

Date: 29th May, 2024




MAXIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

CIN: L51900GI2015PLODB5474

STANDALOME STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
All armounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Revenye From Operations 1B 817.86 1.770.24
Cither Income ] 109.58 123.87
Tatal income 927.54 1,894.12
Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 0 &71.83 1,685.38
Changes in Stock b | (14.57) [0u55)
Employee benefits expense 32 48.10 41.72
Finanoe costs 33 £9.15 16.22
Depreciation and amortization expense 455 3173 23.23
Other expenses 34 123.44 58.99
Total expenses 919,69 1,834.98
Prafit before tax 7.84 69.14
Tax expense:
{1} Current tax 19 19.37
(2) Deferred tax EL] (2.57) 003
{3) Excess or short provision of earlier years 0.51 {5.75)
Profit for the year 7.99 55.49
Other Comprehensive Income
[i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - -
(i} Income tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Equity instruments through other comprehensive income i
Total other comprehensive income = 3
Total comprehensive income for the year 7.99 55.49
Earnings per equity share
(1} Basic 37 0.01 0.04
12} Diluted 0ot 0.04
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
For Shah Mehta & Bakshi For and on Behalf of the Board irectors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo. : 103824W p
ra
-
Milind Joshi Dipak Raval

Dawal Pandya L“‘x P 5/
Partner e e >
Membership Mo, 177345 " =
Place: Vedodara

Date: 29tk May, 2004

{Chief Financial Officer)  (Chairman and Managing

e

DiN: 01292764

Vinay Pandya Divya Prajapati
{independent Directar) {Company Secretary)
DIN: 08363828

Place; Vadodara
Date: 25th May, 2024




MAZXIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

CIN: 15190061201 5PLO0BSATA

STANDALOME STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated

Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Deprecistion and amortization expense 11.73 2313
Inkerest Incame (96.77) (B9.05)
Rent Income [5.000 [5.00%
Unreallzed Exchange or foreign currency transtations {neth [1.35) 192
Finance Cost 55.15 16.22
Prowtsion for Expenses 4.48 =
LossfiProfit) on sale of Investment property, Property, plant ard Equipment’s . 4.13
Net Adjustments (i57]] [48.50)
Operating profit before working capital changes .08 20,64
|Mavements bn working capital:
{Increase) f Decrease In trade receivables (421.35)] {12170
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories {14.57) (0.55)
(ncreasa) f Decrease In financial assets (26.51) 0oz
{increase) f Decrease in Other assets (58.21) 31569
Increase f (Decrease] in Trade payables 12112 [25.21)
Increase f (Decrease} in Other liability & Provisions 446 (38.50)
Cash generated from operations : [154.88] {129.62}
Direct taxes paid (net) 14.05 .03
Net cash from operating activities (A} (208 33)] {lﬂiﬁ__[r
B |Cash fiows from Investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Eqguipments and intangible assats under deveiapment (net) (S0.60) (210.45)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments - 111
Interest received Ba.01 9737
Rent Income 5,00 5.00
{Increass)/ Decrease in loans given {139.15) {121.07)
Bank deposits - 1.00
Met cash (used) in nvesting activities (B) 11.35.?5" {107.03}}
C |Cash flow from financing activities
Receipy{Payment] of long term borrowings 3BT 413.02
Receipt/|Payment] of short term borrowings 23823 -
Repayment of bease fiakilites (7.78) {5.40)
Finance cost [59.15) [14.25]|
et cash [used) in financing activities () 210001 39337
HET INCREASE N CASH AND CASH EQILIVALENTS [{A) + (8} + (C}] {15567 e
'CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEARAS PER NOTE 14 14645 877
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEARAS FER NOTE 14 10.79 14645
The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staterments.
Hotes
1. The statemant of cash fiow is prepared in accordance with the fonmat prescribed as per ind A5 7.
Fior Shah Mehta & Bakshi For and on Behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. ;: 103824W

Damal Pandya

Partner

Membership Mo, 177345
Flace: Vadodara

Date: 29th May, 7024

-~

Miland Joshi Dlpakll.wal
[Chief Financial Offices)  (Chairman and Managing
Director)
DiM: 01292 Y54

Nlomdp et
Vinay Pandya Divia Prfapati
{Independent Directar] {Company Secretary)

DiIM: DB36RE28

Flace: Vadadara

Date: 25th May, 2024




MAXIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CIN: L51900G)2015PLCOB5474

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

&ll amounts are In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

a. Equity Share Capital:

1,257.20 |

—1,257.20

b. Dther Equity:

2023
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
[Restated balance as at 1st April, 2023 {A) 238.32 738.32
{Loss)/Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 7.99 7.99
Other Comprehensive income = z
Total Comprehensive incorme (B 7.99 7.99
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 (A+8) 246.32 246.33

Balance as at 15t April, 2022

in accounting policy or prior period errors

Cha
Inaﬂued balance as at 1st April, 2022 [A)

[Loss)/Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 55.49 55.49
Other Comprehensive Income - -
|Tntal :nmﬂhm:iue Income (B 55.49 £5.49
Balance as at 31st hhr!:uh,_ 2023 B} 23832 238.32

n of reserves :

i. Retained Earnings :

Retained earnings comprises of accumulated balance of profits/(losses) of current and prior years including transfers made to / from other reserves
from time to time. The reserve can be utilized or distributed by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 103824W

Partner
Membership Mo, 177345
Place: Vadodara

Date: 29th May, 2024

For ang on Behalf of the Board of

Miknd Joshi Dipak Raval
(Chief Financial Officer)  (Chairman and Managing
Directar)
DiM: 01292764

ol o

o
Vinay Pandya Divya Prajapati
{Independent Director) [Company Secretary)
DIN: 08368828
Place: Vadodara

Date: 25th May, 2024




MAXIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

i

.

ia

Corporate Information
The Company was incorporated on 22.12.2015 as a subsidiary of Optimus Finance Limited. The equity shares of the company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. It is registered at
Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad. The registered address of the Company is 5044, Sth Floor, Ozone, Dr. Vikram Sarabhal bMarg, Vadi- wad, Vadodara-350003.

It is categorized as Company limited by Shares. its primary activity classification is in Trading. The company presently is engaged in Trading of Oils and Chemicals.

Basis of Preparation

CompHance with ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act™), 1o be read with
Rude 3 of the Companies (Indian Accopnting Standards] Rules, 2015 as amended from time to tima.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on & historical cost basis, except the following:
+ Certain financal assets and liabilties that are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency, and all values are rosnded 1o the nearest lakihs, except otherwise indicated.

Compasition of Financial Statements
The financial statements are accordance with Ind A5 presentation. The financial statements comprise:

- Balance Sheet
- Statement of Profit and Loss

- Statement of Changes in Equity
- Stanement of Cash Flow
- Motes to Financlal Statements

Material Accounting Policy information and Other Explanatory Notes
Material Accounting Policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabllities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treabed as current when it Is:

- Expected to be realized or Intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held prirmaclly for the purpose of trading.

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified a5 non-current.

A llability Is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- There is no uncanditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 25 non-current assets and labilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Cormpany has identified twelwe
manths as its cperating cycle for the purpese of current / non-current classification of assets and liabllities,

Praperty, Plant and Equipment:

Recognition and measurement:

All items of mm, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which Includes capitalized borrowing costs, bess accumulated depreciation, and impairment boss, if sy, Cost includes
purchase price, including non-refundakbile deties and tases, expenditure that is directly attributable 1o bring the assets to the location and condition necessary for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located, If any.

" :i;niﬁant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for, as separate ems {major components) of property, plant and
equipment. Any gains or losses on their disposal, determined by comparing sales proceeds with carrying amount are recagnized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.




Subsequent Expenditure:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company,

De-Recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use. Any gain or hoss arising from Its de-
recognition is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and ks recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
de-recognired.

Depreciation methods, esttmated useful lives and residual value:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the stralght-line method based on life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule N to the Companies Act, 2013, The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset Useful Lives [Years)
Office buildings B0 years
Furriture and fictures 10 years
Qffice equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
‘Wahicles 8 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Capital Work-in-Progress:

Plant and properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are camried at cost, less any recognized Impairment loss, Cost includes
professional fees and, for quallfying asset, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policles. Such plant and Properties are classified and capitalized
to the appropriate categories of Property, Plant and Equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these atsets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the asset are ready for their intended use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and eguipment outstanding at each balance sheet date s classified as capital advances under “"Other Mon-Current Assets™
and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under “‘Capital work-in-progress’,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets If any, are stated at cost less provisions for amortisation and impairments. Intangible assets are de-recognised either on their disposal or where no future economic
benefits are expected from their use.

Intangible Assets under development

intangible assets consisting of development expenditure of certain products, are evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are indications that the
carrying value may not be recoverable,

Investment Praperty :
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appraciation or both, Is classified as investment property.

Recognition and measurement:
Investiment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs,

Subsequent Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future econemic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured rellably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

De-Recognition:
when part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful llves and residual value:
Investment properties are depreciated uslng stralght-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of Non financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. i any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impaiement loss (if any). When it is not
passible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or atherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash infiows, To determine impairment of a corporate assel, recowerable amount is datermined for the CGUS to which
the corporate asset belongs,

An impairment loss is recognized If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment Iosses are recognized In the statameant of profit
and loss. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a OGU s alipcated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goadwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amaunts of the other assets of the CEU {or group of OGUS) on a pro rata basis, Moreover, when an impairment loss subsequently raverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined [net of any accumulated amortization
oiﬂ&w:}pd na impairment loss been recognized for the assetin prior years. A reversal of an impairment 1035 is recognised in the statemant of Profit & Lenss immediately.
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Inventosies:

Inventories of the company consists of only Traded goods. inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Inventorles B determined on the basis of
Weighted average cost method, after providing for cbsalescence and other losses as considered necessary. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, reduction
and conversson costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition,

Nt realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expensas.
The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-basis.

Financial Instruments:
Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrumant of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Initial recognition, classification and measurement;

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value throwgh profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing companent are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

- Financials Assets at Amortised Cost:
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whase objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- Financlal assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income [FYOCH)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it Is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount autstanding.

- Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss [FYTPL)
Finanicial asvets which are not classifled in any of the above categaries are subsequently falr valued through profit or loss.

Equity Instruments

The Campany subsequently measures all equity investmants at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity Investments
In QC1, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to Staterment of Prefit and Loss. Dividends from such investrents are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss a5 other income when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Changes In the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are recogrized in other gain/losses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC! are not reported separately from other changes in fair value,

Derecognition

A finanicial asset (or, where apgplicabde, & part of a financial asset or part of a3 company of similar finsncial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed frem the Company's balance
sheat) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

() the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b} the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Impairment of flnancial assets:

Im accordance with Ind A% 109, the company applies expected credit loss {ECL) mode| for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financlal assets and cradit
risk exposusra:

a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g., boans, deposits, trade recelvables and bank balance

b} Trade receivables or any contractual right to recelve cash or another financial asset.

Fina
Initial recognition and Measurement:

The Campany’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit and
loss or as those measured at amortised cost,




Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial kabilitles depends on their classification, a8 described belaw;

- Financial lizbdlities at falr value through Profit and Loss
Financial liabilities at fasr value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading, The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at
fair walue through profit and loss.

- Financial llabllities measured at Amortised Cost
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method except for those designated in
an effective hedging relationship.

Loans and borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the abilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amprtiped cost is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and Fees or material costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
incheded as finamce costs in the statement of profit and boss.

De - Recognition:
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liakility is discharged or cancelled or explres,

Off-setting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial lizbilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there Is an intention to sektle on a net basis, to realize the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash squivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depasits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
inssnificant risk of chanzes in value.

Cash Flow

Cash flows are reparted using the Indirect Methad, whereby profit for the year i adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses assockated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing
activities are segregated.

Cash dividend:
The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution Is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
As per the corporate laws in india, a distribution is authorized when it I approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Forelgn Currency Translation:

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the fareign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:
Fareign currency monetary items, which are unsettled are reported using the closing rate. Differences arising on settiement or conversion of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit & loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the

transaction and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in 3 fareign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values ware detarmined.

Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from contracts with custemers |s recognlzed when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, The Company assesses promises in the contract that are separate perfarmance abligations to which a portion
of transaction price 5 allocated.

Sale of Traded Goods:
Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade discounts & applicable dutles & taxes if arny, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership ta the buyer,

Export Benefits/Incentives :
The benefits accrued under the duty drawback scheme / Road tap scheme as per the import and Export Palicy in respect of exports made undar the said schemea has been includad
unde{.thtm‘g_d '‘Other Operating Incame’,




Qther Income:
Interest income:
Interest income from the financial assets is recognized an a time basis, by reference to the principle cutstanding using the effective interest method provided it ks probable that the

economic benefits associated with the interest will flow to the Company and the amount of interest can be measured reliably. The effective Interest rate Is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipes through the expected life of the financial asset 1o the gross carnying amount of that financlal asset.

Dividends :
Dividend income is recognized when the unconditional right to receive the income is established.

All Dther incame is accounted for an accrual basis for except where the receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis.

Employee beneflts:
All Employee benefits are payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the senvice are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus,
allewances, ete are recognised as actual amounts due in pericd in which the employee renders the related services.

Shart-term Employee Benefits:

Liabilivies for wages and salaries, including non-menetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employeas render
the related service are recognized in respect of employpee’s services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are sattled. The Eabilities are presentad as current employee benefit obligations In the balance sheet.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the pericd of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarity take a substantial peried of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All ather
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Investmant income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expanditure on qualifying assets i deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

Income taxes :
The tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current Income tax:

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amownt expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation authorities. Current Income tax is measurad at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temparary differences arising between the tax basas of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewsd at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax banefit will be realized.

Provisions and Contingent lizblitles and contingent assets ;

a) Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it i probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying
eccnomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and are liable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed. The expense relating 1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and Ioss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of meney i material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When
discounting Is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflact the current best estimates.

b} Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:

A contingent lisbility i a possible obligation that arises from past events whose esdstence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events nat wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resaurces will be required to settle
the obligation. & contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a llability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company doas
not recognize a contingent lrability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent assets ls not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probabde, contingent
assets are dischosed in the financial statements,

Contingent liabikities and contingent assets are reviewsd at each balance sheet date.




Q  Earnings per Share: :
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or lass far the periad attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted aversge number of equity shares “““““"“'_'5
during the period. Partly pald equity shares if any are treated as  fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to 2 fully paid
#quity share during the reporting period.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the welghted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average nismber of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds recelvable had the equity shares been sctually issued at fair value (Le. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Diluthve potential equity shaves are deemed converted as of the beginning of the pericd, unless issused at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospestively for all periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares lssues including for
changes effected priar to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors,

R Lease:

Company as a lessea - . .
A contract is, or containg, @ lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration.

Lease Liability
At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability 2t the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be
discounted using incremental borfowing rate.

Right-of-use assets
Initiedly recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amaount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any

initial direct costs bess ary lease incentives.

Subsequent measurement

Lease Liability
Company measure the lease liability by (2} increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liabllity; (B) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease paymants made;
and {c] remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications.

Right-of-use assets
Subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impalrment kasses, Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on 3 straight line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and uwseful life of the under kying asset.

Impairment

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverabifity whenever events or changes in clrcumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverzble amount (i.e. the higher of the falr value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis urless the asset does nat
generate cazh flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverabla amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit [OGU) to which the
asset belongs,

Short term Lease:

Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less, & lease that contains purchase option Is not a short-term lease. If the company elected to
apply short term leass, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments assoclated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or anather
systematic basis, The lessee shall apply ancther systematic basis if that basis is more represantative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit.

Company a3 & lessor

Leases for which the company Is a lessor is classified as 2 finance or operating lease, Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee, the contract is classified a3 § finance lease. All other leases are classifled as operating leases, The |ease income from operating leases is recognised on either a straight-line
basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The kessor shall apply another systematic basls if that basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of
the underlying asset i5 diminished .

5 Segment reporting:

Based on "Management Approsch® as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, evaluates the Company's perfermance and allocates the resources based on an analysls of various
performance. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the gecgraphical location of the customers wherever required.

Unallocable ltems inciudes general corporate income and expense items which are not aliocated to any business segment,

Segment Policies:
The Company prepares its segment information in confarmity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company a3 3 whole.
cquy_q_'r:ﬂn:;-hlu costs are allocated to each segment on 8n appropriate basis,
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Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions:
The preparation of the Company’'s separate financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclogure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coudd result in outcomes that
reqiire a material adjustment to the cerrying emount of assets or llabllities affected In future periods.

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and llabilities within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on paramaters avaliable when the
saparate financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising thet are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they meour,

a. Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets

Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life prescribed in schedule |i of the companies act, 2013. in cases, where the useful life are gifferent from that prescribed in schedube Ii,
they are based on technical advice, taking Into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history af replacerment,
anticipated techrological changes, rmanufacturers warranties and maintenance support.

b. Taxes:

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ardinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, Where the final tax cutcome of
these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax determination is
made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of a number of factors including future taxable income.

c. Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

‘When the fair velues of financial assets and financial labilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
wsing valuation technigues. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this ks not feasible, 2 degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes In assumptions about these factors could affest the reparted
fair value of financials instruments.

d. impairment of financial assets:

The Company 3ssesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables and other financial assets. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
irmpairmnent loss sllowsnce on the pertlolo of trade recesvables and other financial assets. The provisicn matrix is developed based on its historically observed default rates if any, over
the expacted life of the trade receivable and other financial asset. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates if any, are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

&, impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses #t each reporting date whether there i an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impalrment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assat’s falr value bess costs of disposal ang its value in use, It is
determined for an Indhédual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying
amaunt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impained and 15 written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value In use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to thebr present value using a pre- tax discownt rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In
cetermining fair value bess cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriste valuation model & used.

These calculations are cosroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

f. Other Provisions:

Significant eslimates are involved In the determination of provisions. Legal proceedings often involve complex legal lssues and are subject 1o substantial uncertainties. Accordingly,
considerable judgment is part of determining whether it is probable that there is @ present obligation as a result of a past event st the end of the reporting period, whether it i
probable that such a Legal Proceeding will result in an outflow of resources and whether the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated,

Mirgstry of Corporate Affairs [*RWICA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules a5 issued from time to Gime. For the year ended
;gmmqunmuﬂmmnmmm«mmmmnmnmmmlumw-p.



MANIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STANDALOME MOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024
All amounts are in INR Lskhs, unless otherwise stated

Disposal during the year E . 45,36 : - 45.36
Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2023 36,35 023 14041 128 743 20788
Adjustment - - s - 0,40 0.40
Additions 109 .98 54,48 080 - 57,36
Dispassl during the year - - - - - .
Grods canrying amount As at 31-03-2024 37.44 131 I34.89 4.09 2789 305.62
Accumulated Depreciation:
Closing accumitated depreciation As at 31-03-2022 18.37 0.29 869 3.28 13.37 7401
Charge for the year 481 . 12.42 . 446 2168
Reversal of accumulated depreciation of disposal of assels - - 20007 . - 20.07
Clesing accumulated depreciation As st 31-08-2023 FER ) .29 3103 328 17.83 7562
Charge for the year 260 014 2258 010 4.75 18
Raversal of accumudated depreciation of dispesal of assets . . . . - -
Clasing sccumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2024 2577 0.44 53,63 3,39 17,58 105,80
Met carrying amount:
As at 31-03-2024 11.67 0.87 18126 070 531 199.82
at 31-03-3023 i3.18 0.03 109,37 - 9.66 132,34 |

# Refer rote no, 32(ali

5 lmestment
|Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-3022 97.61 97.61
Acitions . -
Dsposal - .
(Gross carrying amourt As at 31-03-2023 597.61 97,651
Adkdstions - .
Disposal = :
Gross carrying amount As 8t 31-03-2024 97,61 57,61
Accumulated Depreciation:
Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2022 7.68 7.68
Charge for the year 155 155
Reversal during the year - -
Clesing accumdated depreciation As st 31-03-2023 9.22 812
Charge for the year 155 1.55
Reversal during the year . .
Closing accumutated depreciation As at 31-03-2024 77 10.77
ek carrylng amount:
As gt 31-03-2024 B6.84 BE.BA
As at 31-03-2023 8839 8839

Also Fiefer Nate Ma. S5(0H1]

6 Intangible Assets under Development

| 15,
TA“ ﬁﬂmm':ﬂmpmn Is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 1o its adiginal plan,
i ',.-“\-“
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{a) 'Investrment carried at Cost
'investment in Subsidiaries

U] "Maximus Global FZE 373,07 7307
(Representing 100% equity share capital of subsidiary)
{March 2024- 2100, March 2023- 2100, equity shares of AED 1000 each fully paid up)

[} "™ Africa Limited 74,38 74,38
[Representing 100% equity share capital of subsidiary)
[March 2024 - 110,000 and March 2023 - 110,000 equity shares of KES 100 each fully paid up)

Total 447.45 447.45

| Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 447.45 447.45

Loans

Unsecured, considered good
intercorporate deposits (Refer note no 42)*
5 Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

(0.71)

1,094.25

955.09

* The above intercorporate deposits includes loan to related parties amounting to Rs. 1033.02 lakhs (Previous year - 463,68 lakhs )

(a) Deferred tax Fabilities

Related to Property Plant and Equipment's T

Feelated to Other temporarny differences: 1.34 2

(b} 'Deferred tax assets

Related to Property Plant and Equipment's 1.28

Disallowance under provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961 1.10 0.6

Related to Other temporary differences 2.08) -
313 057

Provision on Property Flant and Equipment's
Disallowance under provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Pravision on Progerty Plant and EQuipment's
Disallowance under provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

mn—currm assels

Mnm:

Balance with Government Authorities 4.61 .78
4.61 1.78




Trace Receivables consicered g

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Trade Recehvable which have significant increass in cradit risk
Trade Recetvables credit impaied

Less : Expected Crédit Loss Allowance ‘

ptal

{iijundisputed Trade Recaivable - Which have
significant increase In credit risk %
(iUndisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired

[iv)Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 3
(viDisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant
increase In credit risk = o
[wiiDisputed Trade Recetvable - Credit impaired . x

Tokal 160.03 35281

61285

Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 3 g

Total Trade Receivable 260,03 35LEL

(5 ¥

As at 31 March, 2023
[iiUndisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 4 s
(iijUndisputed  Trade Receivable - Which have
significant increase fn credit rigk =
(iiijUndisputed Trade Recaivable - Credit impalred 7 !
{iv]Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good : =
|v|Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant
increase in credit risk - .
[vijDisputed Trade Receivahle - Credit impaired % =

191.51

Tatal > 19151

151.51

5s: Expected Credit Loss [ECL) E

Total Trade Receivable = 191.51

191.51

14

Cash and cash equlvalents

-u;hnm-ﬂ.h

{1 CLATEAL BCCoUnts 10.24 146.25
‘Cash on Hand 058 0.20
Total 10,79 146.45

15  Other Financial Assets

1557

Ji mdm'l :
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss- ICT Interest {2.21) -
Total 13.36 4,60
Other Receivables® 29.57] 155
otal 42,93 7.55

* Thie above interest on deposits inchedes interest from related parties amounting 1o R, 6.26 Lakhs (P.Y. Nil) and ather receivable Includes from refated

parties amounting to R, 25.14 Lakhs [P.Y, Nil]

Experse pald in advance
Balances with governmenit authorithes
- GET Authorities
Export Incertive receivable

BS95

364
5.85

2987




MANIMUS. INTERNATIOMAL LIMITED
STANDALONE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unbess otherwise stated

17 Share Capital
a) Authorised
15,80,00,000 - Equity shares of Ra. 1/- each 1,680.00 1,680000
1,680.00 1,680.00
| &) Shares issued, subscribed and fully paid
12.57,20,000 - Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each) 125720 1,257.20
1,257.20 1,257.20
c) Terms & Rights attached to each class of shares;
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1 per share . Each holder of equity shares is entithed to one vote per
share. In the a-.nmt u-f the hqmdaum of mu Company, the holders of equity :hares 'ﬂu be anmlcd to receive remaining assets of the
(]} Shares allotted as fully paid-up
In the Financial Year 201819, the company has allotted 62.86 lakhs equity shares a3 fully pald-up bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1 (Le. one
Bonus shares for every share held) by capitalization of Sacurity Premium account and Free reserves of Rs. 628.60 lakhs.
(e)shares held by shareholders each holding more than 5% of the shares
Equity shares with voting rights
Optimus Finance Limited - Holding Company 78,332,880 79,999,880
|Percentage(| E131%) £3.63%|
(F} Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March, 2024
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
ST o, Promoter name No. of Shares ol il gharee. | = nen thiring the year
1 |Optimus Finance Limited 78,332,880 62.31% 1.331%
2 |Pankaj Kanalyalal Parikh 0 0.00% "
3 |Sureshihai Nagiibhai Patel pli] 0.00% -
4 |Alpana Rinki Gandhi 0 0.00% =
5  |Paresh P Thakkar . 20 0.00%
&  |5onal Deepak Sadarangani 20 0.00% -
7 |Gaurang Ramniklal b 0 0.00% <
Total] 78,333,000 62.31% -
Hate: The above shares held by the individual shareholders are the nominees appointed by the Optimus Finance Limited.
{g) Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March, 2023
hald romaters at
5r Mo, Promoter name MNo. of Shares %of total shares T Slcngn daring tha yeoy
1 |Optimws Finance Limited 79,989, 880 63.63%
2  |Pankaj Kanaiyalal Parikh 20 0.00% -
3 Sureshbhal Nagjibhai Pabel 20 0.00% -
4 Alpana Rinki Gandhi 20 0.00% B
5 Paresh P Thakkar . 0 0.00% -
6 |5onal Deepak Sadarangani 20 0.0 o
7 aurang Ramniklal 20 Q.00% -
Totall 80,000,000 63.63% -
Wote: The above shares held by the individual shareholders are tha nominees appainted by the Optimus Finance Limited.
(h} Additignal Information on Split of Shares
The Shareholders of the Carnpany, at the Tth Annual General Meeting held an 19th September, 2022, had approved the sub-division of cne
equity share of face value Rs. 10 each (fully pald-up) into Ten equity chares of face value Rs. 1 each. The record date for the said sub-division
was set at 3rd October 2022,
18 Other Equity

Retained Earnings

(Loss)/Profit for the yvear as per Statement of Profit and Loss




19 Borrowing

Secured - at amortized cost
Term Loan - From Banks
-For Vehicle Loan -HDFC Bank (Refer note no. 1)
i} Monthly installment of Rs. 0.53 Lakhs till August 2030
il Monthky Installment of Rs. 0.31 Lakhs till September 202%
fii} Monthiy instaliment of Rs. 0.25 Lakhs till December 2030
iv) Monthly instzliment of As. 1.06 Lakhs till February 2030
v] Manthly installment of Rs. 0.42 Lakhs till October 2030

- Qther loan From Banks
i} Yes Bank (Refer note no. 2)
Unsecured - at amortized cost
Loan from Related Parties
-Loan from holding company [Refer note no. 3)

133.14

8235

75.55

Tetal

451,92

#5330

Nate 1; Vehicles purchased are hypothecated with lender, Interest rate ranges from 7.9% to 8.9%. [P.Y.8.81% 1o 9.50%)

Mote 2: The foan from Yes Bank is taken against investment property as disclosed in note no. 05 which bears interest rate 10.25% and are payable by way of monthly

installment of INR 0.75 Lakhs for 180 months Gl December 2038,
Note 3; The Inan from holding company & bearing interast rate of 8.50% and are pavable after 1 year.

10 Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities [Refer note no. 39(a)(i]) 174 897
Total 1.74 B.47
21 Borrowl

Secured - at amortized cost
Loan repayable on demand

Cash Credit Facilities from Banks (Refer below note 21.1)
Current maturities of long -berm debts (Refer beiow note 21.7)

225.02
22.89

Total

24791

5.68

21.1 The cash credit facilities are taken frorm SB! against the primary security of hypothecation of present and future stock & receivable of the company, Agart from the Primary

security, the facllities has been also collaterally secured by immovable property of Mr, Aniruddh Gandhi and persanal guarantee of Mr. Aniruddh Gandhi & Mr. Rinki Gandhi,

The RO of the cash credit facility is 11% p.a.
21.2 For the terms of the security relating to current maturity of long term debt, please refer to note no, 19

22 Leasze Lishilithes

Lease Liabilities (Refer note ne. 359{a)(i))

o '—-._|.."-.r

652

7.08

NN



- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer note no 41) 050 0.56
- Total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 340,33 1945
341.23 20.02

(ijMicro, Small & Medium Enterprises®
[iijOthers
(i) Disputed dues-Micro, Small & Medium Enterprizes
(iviDisputed dues-Others

As at 31 March 2023
{iiMicro, Small & Medium Enterprises
{ii)Cthers

302.85

0.58
139

1B.08

5.00

320.92
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25(i)

Revenue from Operations

Sale of Traded Goods

Lube base oils, additives and other petrochemical products 808,70 1,769.07
Other Operating Revenue

-Export Incentives 5,16 117
Total B17.86 1,770.24

Other Incame

9677 |

interest incame [refer note no. 29 (i]) B9.05
Income from operating beases (Refer note no. 39 (bI{i)) 5.00 5.00
Exchange gain on forelgn currency transiations{net) 1.36 298z
Commission Income 6.53

Miscaflanegus Income ooi -
Total 103.68 123.87

Interest income comprises:

Interest income comprises: [ mmurldatamm-t cost)

Interest on Fixed depasits with Banks . 0032

Interest on Inter- Corporate deposits 96.15 B9.04

Other Interest Income 062 =
Taotal 2677 B5.05

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

1,6B5.38

1,685.38

Traded Goods 15.49 0.92
15.49 0.92
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Traded Goods 0.92 0.37
0.92 0.37
[Met [increass) / decrease (14.57) {0.55)

Emplo eNpEniE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 33.00
Stalf Welfare Expenses 7.53 amn
frowml 48.10 2172
AT =
[CRNATIS
L0y
&P
fr;,, I.-' If-'
l_t; (VADODARA
f‘*?g?““—’??f-;‘




33 Finance costs

interest Cost:
Interest on borrowings 48.19 1377
Interest on Lease Liabilities (Refer nate no. 39(a){1)) 134 1.9%
Other Interest 306 ’
Other borrowing costs 6.56 0.58
Total 59.15 16.22
34  Other Expenses

Advertisement and Marketing Expenses

222

3,88

Power and Fuel 0.91 D.70
Repairs & Maintenance expenses 081 188
Legal and Professional Fees 2548 2585
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer below note) 1.85 1.20
Travelling Expenses 871 559
Insurance Expenses 314 244
Selling and Distribution Expense £2.44 063
Rates and Taxes 074 0.66
Loss on Sale of Praperty, plant and equipment . 412
Office Expense 560 5.06
Danation 0.75 -
Aliowance for Expected Cradit Losses (ECL) 287 -
Wehicle Expense 157 114
Miscellzneous Expense 530 178
Total 123,44 58.99

Hotes: Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory audit mcluding Umilted review 1.04 082
Taxation Matter 0,37 010
Certification Fees 046 0.21

1.B5 1.20




MAXIMUS INTERMATIONAL LIMITED
STANDALDNE MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, wnless atherwise steted

35 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitmenits

lj@oods and Service Tax Demand # 441
ilj Corparate Guarantee® 131211
Capital Commitments
i} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capetal account and not provided for {net 635 1584
advance paid]
Tatal 136257 15.594

#G5T demand onder is recelved ufs 73 for INR 44.21 Lakhs. The company is contesting the demand and has paid INR 546 lakhs under protest while filing appeal before Appellate

Autharity [iLe. loint Commissioner[Appaals), State Tax)].

*[i} Corporate Guarantee has been given In favour of Stanbee Bank for the credit facility utilised by Quantum Lubricants [EA) Limited amounting te BNR 6,77 Cr.

{iij Corporate Suarantes has also been given in favour of AGCE Bank for credit facility utilised by Maximus Global FZE and Maximus Lubricants LLE amounting to Total INR 635 Cr,

Cusrrent Tax Expense 151 15337
Excess or short provision of earlier years 051 {5.75)
1.42 1362

Deferred Tax

Cecrease{increass) in deferred Tax Assets [4.209 0.03
| Decrease) Increase In Deferred Tax Lisbilities 1.63 -
Tutal Deferred Tax Expense (Benefits) (2.57)] 0.03

|

Total income Tax Expenses [0.15) 13.65
|1t) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiolled by india’s tax rate

Profit before income tax expense 7.84 65914
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (J022-13 - 25.17%) 197 17.40
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable] in calculating taxabbe Income:

|Income considered separately (2.43] {1.24)
Mon-deductible tax expenses (Disallowances u/s 144, 438, Capital Expenditure ete.) 058 1.62
Depreciation [2.45) 181
Others [0.23) {5.75)
Income Tax Expense (0.15) 13.65
cf Current Tax [Lisbilities)f Assots

Cpening Balance (25.21)) (29.04)
|income Tax Paid {net} 14.05 17.45
Current Income Tax payable for the pear {1.91) {18.37)
write back of income tax provision of earlier pears {0.5%) 5.75
|Met eurrent income Tax assets/ (lability) a2 the end {1358}/ (25.21)]
Current incoms Tax assets at the End E 2
Current incame Tax Eability at the End 1158 .1

37 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basie EPS armdunts are calculated by dividing the profis for the vear attributable to equity hoiders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding

during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are ealculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity helders of the Company by the weighted avesage number of Equity shares outstanding during the

year,
Pmﬁmﬁmbhw Equity holders of Company

Profit after Tax available for equity sharehalders (85, in Lakhs)
Tital Mo's of Equity shares outstanding during the year

Par value per share (Rs.]
Basic/Diluted earnings per share

0,01

0.04

The shareholiders of the Company, at the Tth Annual General Meeting held on 19th September, 2022, had approved the sub-division of one equity share of face value Ra. 10 each
{fully paid-up) into Ten equity shares of face value Rs. 1 each and hence Basic and diluted EPS for the current and prior periods of standalone and the consolidated financial

statements fave been restated considering the face value of Rs. 1/- #ach in accordance with Ind AS 33- "Earnings per Shares”,

38 Segment Information

The segment information is presented under the MNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as required under the Indi
Segmant”®.
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(2] Finance Leases
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Maturity Analysh of Lease Lisbdities
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Oni 13 fve years 134 pE]
Muorg than fiee years - :
Todal ndiscounted Lesve LiabSties B4l 15.51
Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Firancisl Basitian

Ian Currgnt 1.7 E57
Current B.52 .08
Todal 8.37 1605

Amount Recognlzed in the Statement of Frofit & Loss

Inberest on Leasa Liabiiies
Diepreciation on Lease Assat

Amount Rescogaived in the Statersent of Cash Flow

A5 g lod AS 116 ther bease i classifud a6 ba operating loase By the e if if dass rod tranher substantially all the rigks and rewieds incidental 1o owestship of an ueifirhing
ASHEL

[} Company as a Lessar
Tha Compacy has given office premise under cperating lease, These are Tevabieable by mubeal consent om mutuaily agreed terms,

Ereestment praperty
|Lnulmm¢ recopaiied i the uistement of gohE & loos during the year 15 R, 800 500

Direct Operating expense from proparty that generated sentsl income
1.55 1.55

Emmm

11972 nan

119.72 118.72

Delails of iowestment properties are as bebow:
1) Progerty ; 1; Commercial office no. 301 situated bn scheme m:mmmﬂ:ﬂmwmtﬁ ro. S-AS palll, © 5 no. BEY of wilage vadi wadl, Dist
Wiadodara, Property s gwned by the company,

40 Redated panty Disclosures;

A Hmdﬂumﬂuﬂuﬂmﬂulm
I} List of Riedated Parties

Uhimate Haiding Company ] o T T ; h'l.rt,ilnﬂlimzlimh'd

[Fising Company [oetimes Fimance Limitea ]
[Fersonhaving contee ewer the comaany [anirecan cann: ]
Compaeies elisivous, Glabial FZE [Whally cwned Subsidiary Campany]
MK Adrica Limitted (whailby cowned Subsidiary Cempaey]
Uit Lubricants [EA) Uinsited | Whaolly cwned Subsidisry of
hlrica Limited w.e.f 01.10.2022)
Lubwicants LUE {Subnidiany of Masimus Glooal F2E )
mrmmmmwm*mmwmnm Fetroleum Resources Lid
Advisors Private Limited

Depak Raval iCharman & Managing Direcior)
miling Joshi (Chief Financial OfMcer)
Fandya {Independend Direciar)
el Mty [Non-Esecutive Non-indepsndent Direciar)
Divya Zalanl {indepesdent Direcion
- Rishd Thaker (Indiependent Diracsar]
~ urall Krishnamoorthy {indepssdent Directar)
L Bhanar (Company Sacretary Upta 0211, 2013)
Prajapati |Cempany Secretary fam 0] 02, 21243




B Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties

2751 1541

.31 18.26
-Dharati Bhavsar .80 553
«Divya Prajapati 0z
SIL ATHC LA P
-Oiptimas Finance Limied 138 130
Sukruti Infratech Private Lirnited 014 naz

Maeimus Global FZE T4.ED 22.85

A4 Africa Limited 43.47 524

~Sukrutl infratech Private Limited 1205 nrr

-Aucfin Advisces Private Limitod 37 487

Commiszian [ncbme:
-Madmis Global F2E 205
-M¥ Africa Limited 4.45
-Optimaus Finames Limied 3.1 a7
Aeimbursemant of Experise

~MI Africa Limited 043 041

“Maximus Global FZE 1363 .27
- Quantum Lubsicants (E.4,) Linsited 10.43 -
500486 .

T6.67 100.86

0.3 021

0.21 031

021 [ 5§

419,59 B4.14

17540 2905

450 1025

36.35 2492

= 350

42750 450,40

31320 12287

3.48

041 196

= \
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= Chudrrtum Lubricants [EA) Lid
- WX Africa Limited

-Ouebec Petroleum Resource Limited

-Masirnus Global FZE

-M1X Africa Lirited

-Sulruti Irfratech Private Limited
-hunfin Advisors Privata Limiled

|Director Sating Fees
- Vinsy Pandya
“Dheya Taiani
- Rahil Thaker

“Opitims Finsnce Limited

Ramyoerstion Paypbie
~Dharati Bhavsar

-Divya Prajapati
- Whiird Jashi

895
1576
.42

6716

260,04
54607
158.68

5450

o3

.03

19235

4.08

180,25

17.80

24,52
17353
15.63

37765

D4a

3.4

* Including Fareign Exchangs Gain/Loss)

41 Disclosure refated to Micro and Small Enterprises

mum&mmmmmummwmmwmmmw Mdmmwwlabnmmtmmmumm.
detalls are as beiow,

Outstanding dues to Micro and Small enterprises

himﬂmtdmutmmeHmtermﬁmmmoruumn,wmundimmmm
Mmmmurum.nmmm“mtn{mmmmﬂmmmmm
day during each accounting year.

Beyand the appointed day during tha year) but without adding the interest specified under the Miers, Small and

Id The: amaunt of interest due and payable for the periad of delay in making payment (which b has been paid Bol
Medium Enterprises Developmant Act, 2006,

«ﬂﬂummmmmudwmmmuhmddﬂm acoourting year,

the interest dues abeve are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpase of disallowance of a deductiale
esperiditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisss Development Ace, 308,

42 Muwmmmdmm:
mmmmmmumhﬂmmmmtmuum;hm“smnm

hhaximis Global FIE® 7791 27482
WX Africa Limited* 54193 113,53
|Sukruti infratech Private Limited 158.68 15,63
|[Asodin Adwisors Private Limlted 54,50 50.00
Loan to refated panties 1033.03 463,

Escape India Private Limited 61.94 El.41
ASAl Patroleumn 0.0
West Cosst Qul £ 190,00
Loan te other parties 6154 431,41

The sbove laan has been given Lo abave entities for mesting their long tenm working eapital requirements,
* inchuding Forcign Exchange Gair/{Lass)
 The siowe amount & excluding of allowance for expected eredit loss,




MAKIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STANDALONE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024
All amournits are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

43 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial instruments by category

FVTPL FVOCI  |Amortized Cost | FVOCI  |Amortized Cost

Financial Assets
Investments
- Equity Instrurments - - 447.45 . - Ad7.45
Trade Receivables - - G12.85 . - 19151
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 10.79 - - 146.45
Bank Balances other than above - - - - . -
Loan - - 1,054,25 - - 955.08
Other Financial Assets 44,80 9.42
Total Financial Assets - = 2,210.14 - - 1,749.93
Financial Liabilities
- E 73083 - - 462 88
- a 827 - - 16.05
z 3 34124 - - 20.02
4.07 3.39
£ = 1.093.40 - - 502.34

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instrurments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity Instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all
#quity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges |s valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instrumants that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as litthe a5 possible on entity-specific estimates. if all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in laval 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observabbe market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
The Company’s palicy is to recognilze transfers Into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period,

{8} Valuation technigue used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of gquoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted analysis,

The carrying amount of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents loan, trade payabiles, borrowings and other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as thedr fair

WW‘H short - term nature.
PALILE PN




MAXIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STANDALONE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

44 FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT

The Company's Board of Directors has overall respansibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework,

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk Bimits and controls and to maonitor
risks. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

(A} Credit risk

]
i)

Credit risk ks the risk of financial loss to the company if customers or counter party to a financial instruments falls to meet its contractuel obligations and arises principally
from the company's receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit
worthiness of customers to which the company grants the credit terms in the normal course of business. The company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and
impairment that represants its estimates of current losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

{i) Credit risk management

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer and including the default
risk of the industry, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit imits and continuously monitoring
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant Increase In credit risk on an ongoing basis
through each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default ocourring on asset as at the
reparting date with the risk of default as at the date of Initial recognition, It considers reasonabile and supportive forwarding-looking Information such as:

Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;
Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty;

iif) Financlal or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet Its obligations;
iv)}  Significant increase In credit risk on other financlal instruments of the same countarparty;

v)

Significant changes In the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees of credit enhancements.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor falling to engage In a repayment plan with the Company. Where
boans or recelvables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoverlas are made,
these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

ii} Trade Receivable

The Corpany’s exposure to credit risk i influenced mainky by the individual characteristics of each customer, demographics of the custemer, default risk of the industry and
country in which the customer operates. Cradit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company has used expected credit lass madel for assessing the impairment loss.

{ii) Cash and Cash Equivalent
As at the year end, the Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 10.79 Lakhs (PY Rs. 145.45 Lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances are held with
banks having good credit rating.

iv) Other Financial Assets

Interest Accrudd on Depasits
Allowance for Expected Credit loss (ECL)
Percentage

b} Other financial assets are neither past over dug nor impaired.

Reconciliation of expected credit loss allowance

Loss allowance as on (01-04-2022
Changes in loss allowance

Loss allowance as on 31-03-2023
Changes in loss alowance




(8] Licuidity risk

0]

th:ﬂrnﬁhhrﬂﬂuhﬁmwﬁmmmmmmmmmmmnu:ﬁWrmuutnmmmmn
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mhwmﬂhwmmm.mmwmmmmmhmm I requi nis. The Company manages
Hguitdity feak by W adequate es, banik g Tacilities and restrve bomowing faciities, by continuowsly monioring Forecast and actusl cash flows, and by
matching the waturity peofiles of financial agsets s fiabiksies.

(i Maturitses af financial liabliitses

The tables herewith analye the Company's financial lizbilities inba relevant makurity groupings Based on their conbractua! rmaturies Sor:

'rum-ﬂdndhm:mnnummwmmmMumumm;lmkwwbmnhmwﬁmnn
nat significang,

Contractual mateities of financial labilithes

Trade payabbes. 34134 . 4124
Livise: Linbility &52 174 azz
| Emphayee Benafics 407 - o7
Tatal Moa-derivative Ralsilties 59974 493,66 109340
A% at Manch 31, 2023

Nan-deratives
|Barowing .68 453.20 sl
Trace payabibes 2002 . 20,02
Lease Liabiley 708 BST 16.05
Employee Bars ity ik ] . i39
Total Man-dermating lighilites 4017 £62.17 502,34
‘Market sk

Price Risk

That compary 5 manly exposed B0 the price pisk due 10 R8 investments in equily indtrument. The price risk arises due to uncertainties abost the Tuure market values of
thess investments. The abeowe Insiruments risk are arises dus ta uncertainties about the future market values of thess investments,

Management Palicy
The comgany raintaing fts portfoli in scoordance with the framework set by the Risk management Palicies, Any new | or dh st be approved by the
beard of directar.

Currancy Ridk

Currency Risk i the risk that the valug of firanclal instrument will fuctuate due to changes in Torsign exchangs rates. Forpign Currendy ik arde majarly on seesue of
mmmmﬂwmmmwwmmmnwhwm Its forigm eschange itk management
palicy i e regualarly reviewed by the company.

Following s the desivative financlad instnaments 1o hedge the fareign s

Equivalent INR {In lakhs] of USD 305
Equivalent INR [In kakhs| of AED 295

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Risk managéenent
fﬂhmﬁﬂ-mﬂwﬂmummmmmmmdﬂmnw“ﬂm‘ big ta the equity holders of the Co

Y.

The Compary manapes its capital to opiimize returms 1o the sharehciders and makas acjustments ba i in kght of thanges in ecoromic conditians ar it business
requinemnes. The Company's cbjectives are 1o safeguard conliniity, malntain a srong cred raking and healthry capital rathos in ofder be supson ils business and pravice
adequate retum to sharehalders through continuing grawth and masimice the shareholders value. The Campany funcss ity eperalion through internal sccruals. The
managemant and Board of Directars maniter the return an capital,

Details of quartedy retuons and statement of current assets filed whmmmmmmmmmhumllmm
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MAXIMUS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STANDALONE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1st MARCH, 2024
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Cther Statutory information”s

{i} The company dees not have ary Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

(] The company does nol have any transactions with companies struck off.

{iii} The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyend the statutory persod.

{i¢] The cornpany heave not traded or invested in Crypta currency or Virual Currency during the periodfyear.

(%] The company hawe not advenced or loaned or invested funds to ary other personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities [Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shadl;

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries] or

) provide any guarantes, security or the like te or on behalf of the Ultimate Benefictaries.

{¥i] The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity[es), incleding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise]
that the company shall:

|} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entities identified im any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Utimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security of the like on behall of the Ulticnate Benaficiaries,

wil)The company has no such transaction which Is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year bn the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

will) The company holds all the title deeds of Immowvable property in its name.

i} The company Is not declared as witful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or ather lander.

®) The company has not entered inte amy scheme of arrangement during the year,

i} The company does not have subsidiany in India, AN the subsigiaries are incorporated outside india and therefore section 2{87) of the Companies Act read with Companies [Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 iz not applicable to the company.

Mandatory Accounting Ratios

As 8t 31st March, 2024

Farticulars. Humerator Denominator Current Period Previous Pericd % Varlance
[a) Current Ratio Current Asset Current Liabilithes 1.4 5.55 TR
(b} Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debe Shargholders Equity 0.4% 03 55%
{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Profit after tax + Deferred tax +|(interest B lease Payments + 1.24 185 33|

Depreciation and amortisation  +|Principal Repayments)

Interest on debt and |lease

{d) Return on Equity Ratio Net profit after Tax Average Shareholder's Equity om s -BER
|e) lnventony burnover ratio Cost of goods sold or Sates Average [nventorny 47.43 A A
{f) Trade Receivables trmover ratio Sales {Net of Returns) Average Trade Recaivable 0 13.54 -B5%
g} Trade pavables turnover ratio Purchase of goods and availment off Average Trade Payable 432 53,38 0%
sarvices (Net of Returns)
{h) Met capital turnover ratio Sabas (Mer of Returng) Average working capital 350 10.38 ~BE%%
1) Met profit ratio Nt profit after Tax Sales [Met of Returns) o 3.14% GA%
(i1 Returr on Capital employed Earning before Interest and taxes Capital Emiployed 4, 5.71% -Xa%
(k] Raturn on investment heet Return on Investment Cost of Investment HA) A

Note : Ratio of FY. 2022-23 are changed due to regrouping, reclassification and ressrangement of transction in 2023-24
Reazon for variation of more than 25% In aboverentioned ratios

Currgnt Ratio
Current Ratio has been reduced due to Increéase in shor term loan facility along with the creditors during the year under consideration.

Debt-Equity Ratia
During the year, the company has taken long term as well as short term debt from the holding compary & bank respectively. Debt Equity ratio has been increased
majarky due to such borrawing.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Delot Service Coverage Ratio has been reduced In the current year majarhy due to reduction in the profit after ta.

Return an Equity Ratio
Return on Equity Ratio has reduced in the current year majorly dus to reduction in the profit of the current year.

Inwentory turnover ratio
Company is in trading of Oils and Chemicals. Company does not hold significant inventory as at 31st March 2023,

Trade Receivables turnover ratlo
Trade Recehables turnover ratio has been reduced majorly due to increase In average trade receivable of net sales and It is expected to be imprositad in next Ainancial year,

Trade Payable turnover ratio
Trade payable turnover ratio has reduced rrajerly die to reduction in purchases as compared to relative Increase of average trade payable,
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Met cagital turnover ratio
Naet capital turnover ratio has reduced majorly due to reduction in sales during the vear.

Net profit ratio
Met profit ratio has reduced in the current year due to redwction in profit sfter tax in the current year,

Return on Capital employed
Return on Capital emploved has been reduced in the current year majorly due to reduction in the Earning Bafore interest and Taxes (EBIT].

Return an investmant
There are no investment sulstanding during the year and hence retum on investrnent is NIiL

The standalone financial statements were authorized for issue in aceordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 25th May, 2024. The financial statements as approved by
the Board of Directors are subject to final approval by its Shareholders,

The figures of previous year have been rearranged, reclassified and rogrouped wherever necessary ta make them comparable with those of the current year.

Far Shah Mehta & Baksh For and on H‘Fﬁﬂ'ﬂﬂdﬂfﬂﬂfﬂl
Chartered Accountants _,»-"l.'.'T-i':i T
Firm Registration Mo, ; 103524W S “j £
o Wl
fon | Ya
~ZRNIA ¢ :I = '_"4'}2‘._"-|,J|_-:i-.‘-r-"-|:lf'|_! ':|
o b =\ Wi Mitind Joshi Dum Raval
= Y 5.;;..____ l:‘.'.q:'? (Chief Financial Officer) {Chairman and
ﬁm e S S5 Managing Director)
- Dine: 01292764
Ciaxal Pandya s
Partner 29 Acts U%
hiembarship No. 177345 s Vinay Pandya Divya Phajapatl
Flace: vadodara {independent Director)  (Company Secretary)
Cate: 29th May, 2024 DiM; Q8368828
Place: Vadodara

Date: 29th May, 2024
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CNK and ASSOCiateS LLP (Dubai Branch)

Independent Auditor's Report
To the shareholders of Maximus Global FZE, Sharjah, UAE

Report on the audit of standalone financial statements

Opinion

et a0t i R % 3 ¥ g i
We have audited the standalone financial statements of Maximus Glabal FZE (“ Tha ¢ ompany”), which comprisa

L ] 'l " 5

the statement of financial posiion as at March 31, 2024 and the statemaent af | amprehansive ineorma. statemant
i ; ! !

of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a surmmary of significant accaunting

policies and other explanatory infermation

A our opinian, the accompanying standalone financial statements prasent fairly, in all matarial respects, the
fim i srveitime ol the | . ¢ ]
antial position of the ¢ ompany as at March 31, 2024 and its linanczial perfatmance ane its cash flows for the

vear then enged in accordance with Imeaernational Finamcial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

Basix for Opurpmn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standarcls r_|-._|"'I||_|-j|1:-:|:'J (1588), Cur rr_-t..pr;nf...h' 1o undder
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financia
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with thi International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethie s lor Professional Accountarits (“IESBA Code™) 1':’JT_;F'9!}"+’.“' with tha
other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Company's standalane financial statements in the
United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical resoonsibilities in accordance with thesa
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believae that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

approprate to provide a basis for our npinlnn
Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw your attention to MNote No. 3.2 of the standalone financial statements, where in management discloses
a met receivable of AED 14,148,498 from Neo lubritech FZ-LLC which the Company has offset against payable of
ALD 7,142,802 owed 10 Neo lubritech FZ-LLC by a subsidiary company, Maximus Lubricant LLC, resulting in a
net receivable of AED 5,005,696 from Meo lubritech FZ-LLC. This offset is based on a tripartite agreement dated

March 25, 2024, among Maximus Global FZE, Maximus Lubricant LLC, and Neo lubritech FZ-LLC.
Owur cpinion on this matter is unmodified.
Respons:bilities of Management and Those Charged with Gavernance for the Financial Staternents

Management is responsible for the preparaticn and fair presentation of the standalone financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of standalone financial statements that are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

ErTor
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CNK and Associates LLP pubai Branch)

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's apility

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the gaing
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has ne realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Company's financial reporting process
|
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemaents ‘

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial staternants as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstaternants can arise se from fraud

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial staternants

|
|
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to ‘
As part of audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgements and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also
+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial staterments, whether due |
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence |
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian. The risk of not detecting a material |
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve ‘
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misreprasantatians, or the override of internal contrel. ‘
« Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the internal control.
« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to cantinue as a going congern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o madify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease 10 continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the standalone financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an ppinion on the standalane financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit apinion.
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CNK and Associates LLP oubai Branch)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrel that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with ralevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Erom the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thase matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditer's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reascnably be expected 1o

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Further, as required by Hamriyah Free Zone Authority, we report that for the year ended March 31, 2024:

e We have obtained all the infarmatior and explanations we considered necessary far the purposes af our
audit;

« The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provision of the Hamriyah Free Zone Autherity, and the memorandum of association of the campany.

+ The Company has maintained proper books of account;

s The financial information included in the Directers report is consistent with the books of accounts of the
company.

s Mote 21 reflocts material related party transaction and the terms under which they were conducted.

« Based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which
causzes us to believe that the Company has contravened, during the financial year ended March 31, 2024
any of the applicable pravisians of the Hamriyah ree Zone Authority or provisions of its Memorandum
of Association which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at March 31, 2024 and

« No socizl contributions were made during the year.

For and en behalf of
CNEK & Associates LLP- Dubai Branch

@,ﬁ o

Akshay Thomas 5am
Partner

Registration Number- 1313
Date: May 10, 2024

Place Dubai, UAE
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE 2ONE, SHARJAR

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Particalar et eI N
ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Investme in subssdiary 4 A5T LN S 300
Loan receivibe from subsidiary z 3985299 1,845 299
ntangibie Assets under developaent & B8 z
TOTAL NON CLRRENT ASSETS 4,726,307 LN
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & cash squivalents T I3 7R 15428
Trade & other receivables B EECIR vl IS
Deeposits, prepuyiments & sdvanees @ 35 451 17428
Duig from related partes 18 S 3 4% 308
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10357488 13,184,958
TOTAL ASSFTS (7
EQUITY & LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Eeuity share capitsl 2,000,000 4, O
Retained samings S X 544 487
TOTAL SHARENDLDERS EQUITY [T 10,644 452
CURRENT LIARILITIES

Trade payables " 3. el 3,600, 333
Cvther Curvent Linhilities and Provitien 2 b T5. -] will AKJ
Advince from customens 13 TS .
D o reladed pariies 14 I.'Iﬁ_gﬂ L.T90.271
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES LRI S
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Dse by 14 L817.440 1,274 060

AL LIABILITIES [FTEAT) 1225000

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS FQUITY AND LIABILITIES [T G S e T

The wceompanying nates form an inlegrel et of these Mneocisl stslemenis.
The repori of the auditers' is sei oui on page 1-3,

MAXIMUS GLOBAL FEE, SHARJAH

/s ‘ /
DIPAK RAVAL AN DDH LANDHI
MRECTOR DIRELTOR
Divie; May 10, 2024 Uhabe: Mlmy 1, 2024

Place United Arab Embraios Placr | wilesl &b | marates
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FEE
HAMBIYAH FREE ZONE; SHARIAH

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirbhams)

Nte 2024-23 025-23
Revemp 15 Eﬂ_,ﬂ&l i 15,115,459
Cost of revenue 16 {20077,5592) {12,521 %78)
Gross profit | (loss) 914,384 1,193,453
Cither incomes 17 200,25 251,741
208,259 152741
Operating Expenses:
Selling and Marketing Expenses 18 {35.847) {21.376)
General and Administration Expernses 1% {1002 26) (137,165}
Finance cost i) (UK A83) {174.372)
Total Operating Expenses {144.397) (ML 172}
Profit|Loss) for the year TI0.992 Lina3n
Total comprehensive income for r TI0002 P ]

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the auditors' is set out on page 1-3.

|

DIPAK RAVAL ANIRUDDH GANDHI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Taie; May 10, 2024 Dyt My 10, 2024

Place United Arab Emirates Place Unmited Arab Emirates




MAXIMUS GLOBAL FEE
HAMERIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 224

{Amoant in Arab Emirgies Dirhams)

2423 02312
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
et profit {loss) for the vear a1 2,188,311
Adiusimenis for 3
Finance cosd 148 453 17572
Operating cash flow befiore changes m met operating assets PRATE 137D
Unerens: VDecrense in Current Assels
Trade & other receivables (228 e} 4478 192)
D from relibed party 307 e gla)
Dreposits, prepayments & shances {18006 &TT
Ingrenge/i Decrense ) in Current Lighdites
Tride payiililes (1076 58 1,156,105
Olser Curvent Liabilities and Provision 5T 441,948
Advance from customers Tis 1n 2
[hie o related parties 1433 5} 168 558
Met cash flow fram| used in) operaring achivinies 290TRS (62T.07H)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
{ Addition vDisposal in Investment in subsidiary - =
Addition of Intangible asaet under development i
Pt cash Aow used in) i g EClivities =
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
[credsed Phecremse ) i loan rom subsedury - AT
Incrensed Decremse ) i due 1o relwivd pary =W 121,099)
Finance cost 248.483) I ITT)
et canh o from | med in] financing aci s SRS 10
Mot Incrense/| decrense) ln cash snd cish equivalents 11 ey [E S ]
Caah i ol equivalents al beginming of ihe year 15600 36,600
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 13788 15,638

The sccompanying nates form s iniegral part of these Anancial stalcments.
The report of the saditors' bs sel sui on page 1-3,

{1

IMPAK RAVAL ANIRUDDN GANDIN
MRECTOR MRECTOR

Date; May 10, 2024 Dwtr; Say Bk, 2024

Plaee United Arab Emirates Place |nited Arab Fmirstes
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CHANGES IN EQUITY FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 16024
{Ansount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Fouity share

Particulars capital Hetaimed barnimgs Twtai
Balance as at April 01, 2022 2100 Gk & 441 140 A4, 141
Additons/payments during the e - - =
Trunsker dureng the yeas = e
Net profitiloss) for the year . 2 00331 P R
Bulunce a9 at March 31, 2023 1,100,000 Asiian laelass
Balamee 35 at April 01, 2025 i L [ RITEL u (LTI 5
Add it/ payments dusing the year - = -
Transfer during the vear : 3 %
Net profiviloss ) for the vear . 729 997 T2
Slnncs et March 21 2004 hisases SiThss Lhas

The aceompanying motes form an integral part of these faancial siatemenis.
The report of the suditors' is set sut on page -3,

DIPFAK RAVAL
DIRECTOR

Date; May 10, 2024

Place United Arub Emirsies

Fage !

ANIRL DN CANDI
IMRECTOR

D M 10, 224
Flasr | mited Arals Esirabos
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMBIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amoant in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

Maximis Global FZE s 2 Free Zone Establishment company formed and registered with the Hamrivah Free Zone Suthoeity, Sharjsh, UAE vide License No: 13708, The
license has been granted on 2 April, 2017

The registered address of the company is P1-ELOHE, Office Mo: E-27F-25, Hamriyah Free Zone - Shanah, Uned Ardh Emirates

‘The company is licensed 1o engage in the business of inypodt or export of trading of bitumen, Tubricants aml grease, petrochomicals, chemicals and agre products

Shareholder Maticnality o af Shires Amnunt Yo
Macimus International Lid. Inudia 1000 2, b0 iNE 1D0%%
Tatal 1 Y L, 100 EHMN 100

Application af mew and revised International Finaneial Reporting Standards (“IFRS Accounting Standands™)

The following new and revised IFRSs are issued and effective from January 1, 2023, The application of these new and revised IFRSs does not have any matnal impact m
priod years bt miay affisct the accounting in current and for future fransactions or armangements

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments o [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statesent 1)

The amendments reguire that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its marterial accounting paticy mformation. Furiher amendments explain bow
an criity can identify a material accounting policy. To support the amendment, the Mansgenment s applicd the “four-step matenality proess’ deseribed in [FRS Prtice
Statement 2 as below:

Step 1: The entity identifies information that has the potential to be mistenal.

Step 2: The entity then assesses whether the information identified in Step | is material. In making this asesanent, the eanty weeds 10 eonsider quantitative (size) and
qualitative {nature} factors.

Step 3: In a next stop, the entity organises the mformation within the financial statements in a manner el suppons ciear sl congise communication.

Step 4: The entiby then steps back and assesses the information provided in the Anancial statements as a whole. 1 peeds to consder wisther (he informatsa s asatensl
bath individually and in combination with cther information. This final assessment may kead o adding additional nfarmation or remeyvang infermation that is now
considered immaderial, agpregating, disapgregating or recrganising informaation or even to begin the process again from Step 2.

Definitbon of Accounting Estimates (Amendments (o LAS 8)

The amendments replace the definition of & change :n accounting estimates with & definition of accounting estimazes. Under the new definition, accounting ssiimates are
“monelary amousts i financial statements that ars subgect fo messurement prcertainty”™ Entities develop accounting esnimates il accounting podicias nequine items in
financial stafements 1o be measured fna way that invebves measuremen wncerzinty. The amendments clanfy that a change in accounting estimate that results from new
infermation or new developasents is not the correction of &n emor.

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yel effective from Jaauary 1, 2023 and sot carly adopted:

Effective far
Mew and révised IFRS (Amendments) annual periods

beginning on or after

Lease Liability in & Sabe and Lenschuck (Amendments to IFRS 16)
The amendment charifies how & seller-lessee subsequently mensures sale and leaschuck
ransactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. sy 1.0

Nor-current Liabilities with Covenants (Ameadments to 145 1)
The: amendment clarifies how conditions with which an entity must comply within January 1, 2024
mwelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a liabiliny

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to TAS 7 and IFRS 7)

The amendments add disclsure requirements, and “signpesis’  within exisfing

diselosure reguirements, thal usk entitiss W provide qualitative and guantitative January 1, 2024
information about supplier finance arrangements.

Lack of Exchangeability { Amendments to TAS 21}
The mmendments contnin guidance o specify when a currency is exchanpeable and how January 1, 2025
to dhetermime: the exchanpe rate when it is ot

Management anticipates that these [FRS and amendments will be adopted 16 the Gnancail siatements i the inital peniod when they become muandatarly effeciive. The
impict of these sndards and amendments are curnenily being assssed by the mansgenrent,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 BASIS OF PREFPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statement have been prepaned in aecordance with International Financial Reporting Siandards (IFRS) issued by the Internations] Accourting Siandasds
Board (IASB} and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interprettions Commitise (IFRIC) that are refevant to the operations of the company.
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE £ONE, SHARJAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arzb Emirates Dirhams)

22 ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
The financial starements ave been prepared under the hisioncal cost comvennon and wnder accral sysiem of sccowmng The scoounemyg pocies e boen consmtontly
applied by the cstublishmenl during tee pericd wnder review.

UE RECOGNITION
JFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Condracts with Cusomers
1FRS 15 establishes & comprehensive framework for determining whether, bow much and when rmverne o recsgmrad. [T replsesd A5 18 Revenue, [AS [ Consmstion
Coniracts snd relsted inlerpretations.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recopnized when a customer obtsins control of the goods or servioes. Determnmyg the hmuotg of e ransfer of contrd- 8 8 pomt m omwe or
over fnse - requides judgenient

The Company recognizes revenwe from contracts with customers based on & five step model as set out o IFRS 15

Step Iz Ldenisfy the coniract(s| with 8 customer A contract is defined as an agreement betwess twe of moes palies Pl ereales enforceable fights and obliealions aad s
aut the grierin for every contract that must be met,

Step 2: Wenhiy the performance obligntions in the contract A performance obligation is & promiss in o commat with & ustomer b ramder 3 good 1o e ceslomes

Step 3: Determing the mansacton price: The ransaction price s the amownt of conaideration w whsch the Company cxpocts o be ontmled i ewchangs for ransiomng
promised peods w© a cusomer, excluding amounts collecred cn behall of third partes.

Sitep 4: Allocate the tramsaction price to the performance obliganons in the contract For @ commet thal has mors han o perfonmeece obigaion, e Company wil
wlioguse the ransaction price o cach performance obligation in an emount that depicts the amownt of romadention 1o which the Compery expecs w be entithed o
exchimge for saisfying each performance obli g

Step 8 Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity sabisfles a perfonmance oblagaton.

The Company satisfies a performance obligaion and recognises revenue over e, if one of i following cniena » ma

1. The custoaner simulsmeously recoives and consumes the benefits provided by the Conspay's perfonmance & fe Company perfomm. o

1, The Comparry's performance creates of enbances an asset that the customer coslrols & e saet 1 cremad of sehancead, or

3. The Company's performance docs ol create an asset with an alternative use o the Company amd the ooty has an cnfbrocable nght © payment S performance
compleied 1o dase.

For performance obiligations where one of the above conditkans ire not met, revenos i recogmessd sl the pont w crme 8 whigh pey formarce obligston o el

Sale af gooids

In relstion o the Company's scvites related sale of goods, o which the sale of goods and delevery m peoerally cxpeomd W b the onky periommascs ohbpaton, sboption
of [FRS 13 did not have sny major impact on the Company's revenie did piofit or ks The Comgany conclaled il e venos imcognmon will Socef f o pos o b
when control of the ssset is tanaferred o the custamer, gemerally on delavery of the poads or collecnon of poods by cusiomens

Advances recvived from customers
Clenerally, the Compamy recerves only shon-ierm advances. from s customern. They wre presemted as pan of st ad oifwi pasablen. Accordmghy., tare sre mo Tome g
CONTMPEVMEITIS i tha Commipeiny’s conragts with customers

ﬂgm.mWMmem,Mlﬂm

A8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Caah and cash egudvaledits compring caah balance ancd cash ai hank

26 PROVISIONS
Irovisons are recognized when the company has & presem obluymisen s o result of past event & i = probasle that the outflow of ressarces will be required W sende the
ubligmtion,

3,7 INVENTORIES

Inveniories of the company consists of only |'raded poods Invemones are mcasurcd ab kower of codl amd net roalzable valee Cost of mveriones i determnad on the
basita of Weighted avernge cost method, afber providing for obsolescence and other losses @ conmidersd neormany Uonl mchudes oxpendine meurmed o squernng e
sventunies, reduction and conversion costs and offier costs meumed s bringing them ki their prosent koston ad cooditeen et relimbls valee 5 e rdbinesed wiling
prive in he ordinary coune of business, less e estimated costs of completion and selling expenses Thae comparvan of cost and pet nealieable vaha B e o0 e em-

A8 FOREIGN CURRENCY

Fundtionsl and presemtation curreney

The finnnginl sttermants mg prosenod in LIAE Dicham (AED), which is the company's functional ind prasentation sarmis

Trminaciinn snd balances

Trmnsacisoms in Torgign currenc ies arg cransdated i the functional currency using the exchangs ke prosailing st the anacton dates Mososary st o balal ey
expresasd in fotegn curmencies ai the balance sheet dele are ranalated of res of sxchange ruling o the halance et ot | schange & Mererces srmeng & taie aw daait
with the smeement of comprehensive incoime
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED MARCH 31, Iu24
{Ampunt in Arab Emirates Dirbams)

39 CRITHCAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS & KEY SOURCES OF UNCERTAINTY ESTIMATION

The prepanstion of Financiel stsements i conformity with [FRS foquires management o make fadgment, Stilmie & meumptons ha afen I appiacaton of
accounting policics & the camrying amounts of ssséts, habilites, income & expenses. The estmate: & sssocited asrunplons ae ised on Neloiesl expenence snd orber
factoes that are considersd i be relevant and ressonable wnder the CICEMSEENCES.

Estimates & underiying assumpions are reviewe) on & pomg bess. Revisions i Sccounting ssfimies e raogmired 0 the pened m wheh the cnmaic 5 mvsod, i the
revision &fferts only that period, or in the period of revision and futere periods if the revision efecs both curment & funes peneds.

During the year the company Maximus Global FZE (MGF) has entered mio tiparty agreement wish if subsidiary Meoomues Lobrcant LEC OMLL) and Moo kabritech F7-
LLC {NED) i set off receivable and pavabie balances. Wherein MGF and NEO agree 1o set off their receivable and pavable balances micradly  Sumdarty. MIL and NECH
also agreed w0 set off their reccivable and payablc halances mternally. Afber the seiting off recenvable snd payshle balssce of NED @ respeciive books. MGF had net
receivable balance from NEOQ and MLL had net prsable balance 1o NEO, Further, MGF, MILL st KEO sgrend o set off net balace recowvable by MOGF from NEC
against nel balance payable by MLL o NEO

Reconcilistion of Mea balances in MOGT and ML books

| Ammand | AEIH

[T RG]

4211637

Met Recelvable in the Books of MGF from NEO 14,148,458
|Eﬁhhhﬁs¢!‘m 5,552 408
reditors in the books of MLL 14,095 208
[Wet Payahle in the Bosks of MLL s NEQ {1‘.“593_!
khm‘“mfiﬂhlh“HHFMMHH“HH.\ED-MMHM § 004 498

310 LEASES

TFRS 15 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, [FRIC 4 Determinang whether an Amungement contains & Lekse, SI0- 19 Operating | ssses-incentrees and SIC-7 Fvabating the
Subsmnce of Transactions imvalving the Legal form of & lease The standard sets oul the princighes for the regogninkon, measuremenl, prosenmnon el disciosers of eases
and requires [Gasces to accaund For all keases under & sngle Balince ihee! mode]

‘The campany adopled IFRS 16 usiig the prctical expedient wilh effect Buen the daie of Apid 01, 2019 [he commpany sl dheciiod i e e isoognston swsmplcin e
ledae contraces at the commencenment date fir boases having serm of |7 maonths or less amd fon ke contracts for wuch the unsdlerlying st 5 of e value

4 INYVESTMENT IN SUBSHMARY 00433 103333
Mixiniian Lubrcais LLC weit Kb
wlitting Balenes LR

Investment in subasdiory represents Investment in equsty shares of Maximus Lubricants L1 previousdy Pecifie |ubrcamts [LC) The Investmon s carmed @ cost

As per agresment entered betwaen Maxemus Global FZE (The Company) snd other shareholder of Manmus Lubrcasts LLC (MLL L dated Jaimy |, 2030, ihe comgeiry
it Bt ivens discretionary powers 1o ke decisions o composiion of bowrd, aperational malicr, wmnsialivg ks ol

Pasis the nbove, the company ulfils the Bsllowing conditms of IFRS 10 for the eatablishment of sabwantial control

A Power over the investes (see pamgraphs 10- 14 of [FRS 10},

. Exposure, or nights, to variable retuma from iis involvement with the invester (see  paragrapbes |4 and 16 of IFRS 100, wosd

' The ability o use ity power over the aivestoe o affect the amount of the investor s reterms (see parsgriphs | T aod 18 of ITFRS 10}

Hence, Irasis the above, Mivimis Lubeicamts LLC is conuderod o subsidiary of Maximus Globsl FZT from Janary 1, 3030, om groussds of establishment of subsmasnial
control ng per [FRS 10 and accordingty the compary has consalidabed MILL imto its Consolidased | o sl Sterments (omn SMach 11 2000

§ LOAN RECKIVABLE FROM SUBSIDIARY ey i

Losnto Meimes Lubricants LLC ﬁ 10w 399

Managvemant swsessed e expevted credit losses sa prescribed by the requirements of [FRE % spainst kan recsivable fom admidar et conchaled tal ey wes =
naterial imguct on the fowngial statements Tha company has applicd the umphiied approssh o messuneg fe copected ceodit kmses wheehs wes Wifiirs epainld ms
allowance fior loan receivable from sabsidiary  The revised impsirisnt methodology his nol reaiod © s credis Las o loan e abi g Som whadsar

¢ INTANGISLE ARSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Cimmpuber Software H dogl-13
Opaeriinny Mt .
A——- 41708
Amortiguen L=

T
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MAXIMUS CLOBAL FZE

HAMRIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARIAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDE MARCH 31, 2024

{Amouat i Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Apgeging for Intanpible asser under devebopmyent

wk sty under developmest

Amount in infangible asets under dhtloggmt for a period of

Less than 1 year

[1-2 vears

2-3 years

Taial

Project in projgress as March 31, 2024

45 70|

More Thun 3 years

Project in progress as March 31, 2023

45,708

7 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023-24

2031-13

Cash m hand
Balances with banks

1402
123886

1.402
14,226

Clasing Hulance

13,788

15,628

8 TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023-24

2051-13

Trade receivables
Onher receivables
Provision for deubefil debis

9.448.621
4,654
(E2 253}

9.224.60%

{12.233)

Closing Ralance

9.441,042

9,212,376

Accounts Beceivables Ageing (From Doe Date)

Particulars

Less than &
Months

& Months - 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 Years

Muore than 3
Years

Total

As at 31 March 2024

(1) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Considered Cood

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivabie -
which have significant increase in
cradit nsk

{ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
credit impaired

{1v) Disputed Trade Recervable -
Considersd Good

(%) hsputed Trade Receivable - which
|have significant imcrease in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable -
credit impaired

Total

Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Total Trade Receivahle

9,436 388

9,436,355
9,436,388

12,233
(12,233

D 44E621

9,448,621
(12,233)
0,436,388

Accounts Receivables Auxcing (From Due Date)

Particalars

Less than 6
Months

6 Months - 1 vear

1-2 years

2.3 Yenrs

Moaore than 3
Years

Total

As at 31 March 2023

(1} Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Comsidered Good

(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivable -
rwhich have significant increase in
credit risk

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
credit impaired

(1) Dnsputed Trade Receivable -
Considered Grood

(v} Disputed Trade Receivable - which
have significant increase in credil nsk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable -

credit impaired

Total

Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
otal Trade Receivable

5.531.568

5,531,568

5,531,568

3,680,808

3,680,808

3,680,808

12,233

12,233
[12.233)

5,224 609

9,224,609
(12,233)
9,211,376
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirabes I:Ih‘htm!}

Accounis Hecelvables Ageing {From Due Dake) Continues.

Management assessed the expected credit losses us preseribed by the requiremsents of IFRS 9 apainst accoums and other recenvables and decided o provide 12,235 AED
proviston for the year. Company has applied the simplified spproach to messuring the expected credit [osses which uses lifetime expected loss gilowanos for all accounts
and other receivables,

When measaring ECL the Company uses reascnabiz and supportable forward-lnoking information, which is based on assempticns for the future movement of difTenent
ceononiic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Loss given defiuly is an estimate of the loss ansing on default. 1 is based on the diffenence hetween the
contractual cash flows due and these that the lender would expect 1o receive, taking inte account cash fows from colisteral and integral eredil enhancements

Probability of default constirtes 2 key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the lkelihond of default over a given time horizan, the calealation
of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectatiens of future conditions

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS & ADVANCES Hjz3-24 2iz2-23
Deposits 1, 504 1,500
Prepayamcis 26,403 L1
Loans & advances T.T4E 15,004
Duties & tanes Gt 300
Closing Palance 35651 17635
IME FROM RELATED PARTIES
The Company, in the ordimary course of its business, enters into trading and financing trensnctions with concerns which Gl within the dhelimition of “related party” as
conmined in Infernational Accounting Standard 24. The balances due infrom such parties, which have been disclosed segazately mthe Hnancsal statements, are unsetured
and repayablc on demand. The management believes that the temms of the trading ransactions are not materialty different from those that could have been ablzined from
unrelated parties.
Related party balances are as under: i23-14 M)21-23
Mapamus Lubricants LLC (Purchase) ; x 1,576,340
Blacimus Lubetcants LLC ((ther Receivahles) 500,274 470,741
Belacimus Lubricants LLC (Inferest on Loan) - 1,006,838
Quebec Peroleum Resources Limited (wowards sales) 557,751 357,731
Sk Epergy PTE Lid. (lowards sales} - 533,439
BT, 005 3,934, 300
Mankgerien] assesied the expecied credit kisses as prescribed by the requirements of IFRS 9 against due from reisied parties and concluded that there was mo material
impact on the fimancial stalements. The company has applicd the simplified approach 1o measuring the expected credit losses which uses lifetime expected loss allowance
fior due fromm related parties. The revised impairment methodology has not resultted in amy credit koss in due from refzted partiss,
TRADE FAYABLES 22324 202223
Trade Payables 525,749 3,602,333
Closing Batance S840 3605333,
! N
Ihm‘:"‘“ Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 Years : h:‘_:l::" : Taotal
As at March 31,2024
Disputed Dues
Uindisparted Ducs 525,749 - - - 425,749]
As ai March 31, 2023
|Disputed Dues
Lindisputed Dues 3,602,332 . . . J.602.332
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISION 2023-24 M22-13
Orther pavables & provision Lk 751 L0
Dhudies aned fanies 18,669 -
Pawable in liew of LT - S92 BRI
<Closing Balance 29330 603,451
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE RONE, SHARIAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhoms)

13 ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS 2023-24 2022-23
Advance from cusiomers T35 -
Llosing Balance 3% =

14 DUE TO RELATED PARTIES I
The Company, in the ordinary course of 13 busincss, enters into trading and fnancing ransactions. with concerns which fall within the definition of ‘related party” s
contied in lmemational Accounting Standard 24. The balances due to/from such parties, which have been discloscd separately in the financial stilements, are unisecured
and repayable on demand. The management believes that the terms af the trading transactions ace ret materially different from those that could have been ebiained from

unrefaled pariaes.

Helated party balances are as under: 2023-24 2022-23
Mon-current partion
Lo from Maximus International L, (Sharcholder)® 1,235 (0 225,000
Loan from MX Africa Limited 5§92 140 =
Total LALT, 140 1,225, (NN
Current partion
Interest Pavable o MX Africa Limited 40,598 196,780
Loan from Aniruddh Gandhi (Incloding Interest Acerued) 15.634 -
Maximus Lubricants LLC (Purchase) 328.59% -
Advance from Maximus Lubnicants LLC (fowards sales) 510,531 145,719
Manimus International Lid {Corporate Guaraniee commission) 12,178 -
Maximus International Lid - Scftware T332 -
Maximus Indernational Lid [Inkerest on loan) 4.364 -
Advance frony Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited (towards sales) 392000 447,763
Total 1,336,305 1,790,271
[ Halance 3,153,448 3,015,371

The Loan from Maximus nesnational Lid repeesents loan from shareholder ) 9% interest per annum received from the sharehabder in normal courss of husiness

Percentuge 1o the
bvance e [ Reated paty
Sr No Type of Borrower Loans and
naiere of loar :
mtstnading Advances in the
mature of loans
As at 31 March 2024
[4] Promolers o
i15) Lhreciors -
(i} KMPs
Aninsddh Ciandhi 15,634 1%
{iv} Related Partics
Macimus International Lad 1223 0 Q6%
M Africa Limited 4 598 3%
As at 31 March 2023 |
{1} Fromolers
(i) Directon: . £
i) JEMPs
{iv) [Helnted Pariies
|Maximus Inscrnational Lid 1,225,004 1P

15 REVENUE 201324 2023-23
Sales 20057927 130383106
Less: Sales return : ;
Oither direct revenue® 408 2077,143

Total 20,991,981 15,1 ladﬂ
*Oither direct revenue represents, revenue from services provaded b customers wiach are directly in relation 10 sales.

16 COST OF REVENLE 2023-24 202323
Crpening Stock ] =
Add: Purchases 20,077,592 12,867,130
Add; Direct expenses = 54 446
Less: Closing slock : 3
Jotal 2,077,592 12921976
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE
HAMRIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

17 OTHER INCOME IO23-24 2022-23
Interest income 198 265 199,265
Miscellansous Income - 12,920
Provision for bad debts no longer required 994 10,556
Total 244,255 151,741

18 SELLING AND MARKETING EXFENSES 202324 02223
Clearing and Forwarding Expenses 35947 31,376
Total 5047 31376

19 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 2023-24 2022-13
Provision for Doubtful debts = 13,233
License fees 25 250 25 260
Legal & professional lees® 33,26l 1o 625
Miscellancous expenses L30% 3763
Foreign exchange 1o 6567 4710
Telephone expense 33,313 33445
Insurance i1 1119

100,226 137,168
*ncludes AED 15,000 paid 10 Auditors towands sudit and limited reviews for the FY 2023-24

0 FINANCE COST 2023-14 Hi22-23
Bank charges BOO1S 70,251
Commissson on Corporate Guaranies 10,6356 -
LC Diiscounting 1028 -
Inderest om loan Trom related party 134,789 104,121

m 1-54_33 174,372
l Deseription of refationship { Name of related pany |
[Holding company Maximus lnternatonal Limited
Subasdiary company Maxinius Lubrseants LLC {formerly known az Pacific
Labricants LLC)
I.FE|I|N.' subﬁiﬂiﬁ}l BPAX AT Lanared
{5ubsadiary company of MX Africa Limited Cheanmum Lubricards (E-A ) Limpbed
{Perzon having control over the company | Aniruddh Gandhi |
IEIIH:ranH- aver which person‘close Eamily members have contrd or sigmificant influence SKEG Energy FIE Lid, (formery known as SEG Intemnational
[uchec Petrolewm Resources Lid
Key Management Personme] Dipak v Rawal {Diregior)
Amruddh Crandb (Ddrecior)
Murali Krishnamoorthy {Director)
Auand Muley (Ddrector)
B Partculars of transgctions with related party
l Particulars 2023-24] 202223
198 265 199 265
RIEL ] Y A
[hMaximus Intemational Limited 110,052 104,021
Africa Linsited 0,508 -
nuruclh Gandhi 4,034
AT S Cprporate Cigaraile
ximus Inzernational Limiled 10656
Ergight expense (included in diree] expensss)
Maximus Lubricants LLC - 23,064
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MAXIMUS GLOBAL FEE
HAMRIYAH FREE ZONE, SHARJAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR MARCI 31, 2024

{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhanss)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued}

Particulars 2023-24 2022-
[Eeihs incomg:
Maximus International Limied - 102,900
5KG Energy PTELTD - LI73518
[COmantum Lubricant E A LTD 4054 2
Eﬁmm'mu.s Lubricants LLC 12,7522 303381
Sale of prods
fdn.ti.mus Lubricants LLC 3000 844 992 538
Maximus International Limaved 338383 44 8TS
SKG Enerjpy PTE LTD - 4. 240411
Cluantam Lubricants (E A ) hinsited 51,590 s
ived during the wear
|Mx Adfrica Limitel 395,063
| Particulurs 202324 2023-13
Maximus Infernational Lad. (Payable for Intangble assets) !E_LETE -
aximmus Infernadional Lid, {Softwane) b -
Maximies imlemational Limited Interest Payable 9.5 -
[ Irade payables
IMaximaus Lubricants LLC {Purchase) I8 398 1145719
[Cuantum Lubricants (E A} Limited 270 447163
Advances Received
Mlanimus Lubricants LLC (Advance apainst Sales) 510531 -
Loan Payable
Lasen from MX Africa Limited (Inchsling interest) 632,738 196,78
Sefaximus Inkernational Limited 1,887 L4 1,225 00
" ; o i oy
Loan from Animsddh Gandhd (Including Interest Accrued) 15634
| Tride receivables
Padmus Lubricants LLC . 1576540
[ ueber Perroleum Resources Lid 35735 357,731
SKG Energy PTE LTD . 533459
500,274 470,741
Mlicimus Lubncants LLC 3085 200 4585, 137

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments means financial assets, financial labilities and equity mstruments. Financial assets of the Coanpany includes cash and cash equivalents, loan
receivable from subsidiary, trade and other receivables, deposits and dus from related party, imvestment in subsiciary and invesmen in asociates. Financial liabiles
inchudes Trade and other payables, advance to customers and due 1o related parties.

The management believes that the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their carmying amounts af balames sheet date
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COMPARATIVE FIGURES:

MAXIMUS GLOBAL FEE
HAMERIYAH FREE Z0ONE, SHARIAH

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirsties Dirhanss)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Costinued)

Finanmcial Instruments by cabégory e

Finawncial Assety

Trade & other receivables a0 T2
Ievestmend in subssdiary 695,500 695 300
Dieposits 1300 (B
Cash & cash equrcabents 137 13528
Dwse from related pernes BT 3939 W0
Loan receivable from subsidiary 1515 290 353299
Advances T.HE 140104
Fimancial Liabilities

Trade payahics TR 3800353
Pz 1 relnged pasties BEREE ) 3018
Advance from customers I3 -

The main risk arseng from e Comparry financial matraments are Currency Risk, Credie Risk and imierca Baie £oi

& Currency Risk

Currency risk 15 the sk that the value of financial nserements willl fuchsate due t changes o foregn exchangs rans. The Compay's ol cuamae o e Lnied S
Dollar and Arab Emurates Dirhams. Hence curency sk is ks,

Currency Risk Management

The majority of the transactions and balances are i either UAE duham or Uinsted Seates Duollars and a5 rhe twe correncios we pogged, the corrency rk = mamssnod g
low

b, C'redin Risk
Creclit riak tn the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail b discharge am obligation sl cae the other party 1o meu @ omncal loss. Fmancal Asson, whach

poventially expose the establishment W eredit sk, comprise masnly of bank Accowns and Accamms rosivabie

Credit Risk Mansgement

Compay munages credii risk with respect 1o receivables from cusiomens. by monsonng i socordusce wiif defined pobces and procedirss Credt fak w hm ited ko the
carrying value of financial assels in the balance iheet.

The compuny applies IFRS 9 sumplified approach 1o messine expected credit losses. which wses expected credin ow allowance for 3 0 made necovasion The compamy

ek B [imil it credat sk by dealing with repuatable banks and odependently rused parties witk & s of vesment grde s

. Imterest rute riak

The compuny dogs not have sy shon term ar long lerm borrowings rom banks of other fomnceal nsimitons oy the year Howrver, he cosmperry b loam om
relabed party i Fined 9% interest per annum and hence inberest rabe risk i present

Imterest rite risk s nsgrmest

The company dogs have loans with related parties. However, the mmerest rate o fixed and not subpect ko any oo flonmon due m milsion Hence Dubenet rate rink i mol
sy fand

SIGKIFICANT EV W BALANUE SHEET DATE

Camprative figires for the previous period have been regrouped. resstanged and reclsifiod, whcrever soczuar, 1 Gonhem) foy that urmenl peiend presamnEsn

3 KILADING OF
The Agures in these fnancial susemeenis hitve been roundied ofF 1o the newrest Arb Emimeas v | AL

The accompanying mates frm an integral part of these Naancial sbslemenis,
The report of the suditon” is wi oul on page |-3
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MX AFRICA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the company is import and wholesale of various lubricants and oils.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The company results for the period are as shown on page 6.

The company net loss for the period of Kshs, 5,471,848/= (2023 Net loss: Kshs 1,898,569) has been
transferred to Accumulated losses

DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividends.

DIRECTORS

The directors who served office during the year and to the date of this report were:-
Dipak Vrajlal Raval

Mr.Murali Krishnamoorthy

Aniruddh Gandhi

AUDITORS
Moore JVB LLP., the Company's auditors and have indicated willingness to continue
in office in accordance with section 159(2) of the Kenyan Companies Act (CADP 486).

By order of the board

ﬂ

Aniﬂj‘dﬂ! Gandhi - Director

ol

Emify Oduor - Head of Finance

Dvipak Raval - Director

Date: 15th May 2024
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MX AFRICA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Kenyan Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of
the financial year and of its profit or loss for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that
the group maintains proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the
financial position of the group. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company.
~ The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. They also accept
responsibility for:

i) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements;

ii) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

iii) making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the financial affairs of the company as at 31st March 2024 and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies
Act.

The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the year to March 31, 2025 and,
in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Company
has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future.

Approved by the board of directors on 15th May 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

4

Awiruddh Gandhi - Director

. iy

Emily Oduor - Head of Finance




Moore JVB LLP

MOORE Certfied Public Accountants (

Head Office

The Pride Rock,
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F. . Box 69952 - CC400

Mairoid, Karya

T =254 20 2083628 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT = e L

Tuo the Shareholders of MX Africa Limited

Orpindon

We have audited the Financial Statements of MY Africa Limited sot out on pages 6 to 18, which comprise the Statement of
Financial Position as at 31 March, 2024, and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Stetement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, incleding a summary of si gnilicant accounting policies.

In aur opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements give a brue and fair view, in all material respects, the financial poaition of
BX Africa Limited as at 31 March, 2024, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reparting Standard for Small and Medinm-sized Sntitios and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies
Act, 2015,

Basis for opinion

We coniducted cur audit in accordance with Internatinnal Stanlards oo Auditing. Qur responsibilitics under those standards an
further described in the Auditer’s Respoursibilitivs for the Audit of the Finmncind Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the company in accordance with the Infernativin! Etlies Standands Bornd fir Acconiriaeits Code of Etfiics fir Professinanl Asconmtmls
(Purfs A nad B} (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audils of luandal skatements in
Kenya. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with ather ¢thical
requirernents applicalle to perferming audits in Kenya, We believe that the audit evidence we lave abtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key audit matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional padpgement. were of most significanse in cur audit of the Financial
stitements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the conbext of ony audit of the Einangial statements as a whols,
and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide a separale opinton on these matters,

Excepl for the matter(s} described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined that there are
no key audit matlers to commurscate in our report.

her information

The directors are responsible for the cther imformation, The other information womprises the Directors’ Report as requined by the
Kenyan Compandes Ack, which we obtained prior tir the date of this report. Other infermation does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the Financizl Statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not express an audil opinien or any form

of asgurance conclusion Hwereon,
T compection with our audit of the Fnancial Statements, our respansibility is b read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financdal Skaterments or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or ntherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we concliude that there is 4

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repork that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the Financlal Statements

The directors are vesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Firancial Statements i accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, and for
such internal control as the divectors delermiine s necessary to enable the preparation of Financlal Statements thit are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Financial Statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to contitiue as a going
comcern, disclosing, as applicable, maners related to geing concern and using (lse gong concern basis of accouribing unless the
divectars either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but fo do so,

Page 4
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Moore VB LLP

M 00 R E Certified Public Accountants (K)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to oblain wasoraile assurance about whether the Financial Stalernents as 4 whole are fres from makuerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includus vur opinion. Reasorable assurance i a
high level of assurance, but is nok a guarantes that an audi: conducted in accordanee with International Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalvments can arise from fraud or ermor and are considered material if;
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expected 1o influence the economic dicisions of users taken on the basis
of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accerdarce with International Standands an Aviditing, we esercise professional judgment amd maintain
professional seepticism throughout the audit. We alsc:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedurcs responsive to those risks, and nbiain audit evidence that is suffictert and appropriabe o peovide a basis
for our opindon, The rsk of nol deteckling a material misstetement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions, misreprasentations, or the cverride of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevack to the aedit in order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’ s inkernal contral.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting eskimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriatensss of the directars’ use of the going concern basis of accounkting and based on the audit evidence
obfained, whether a material uncerfainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
abdity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uneerkinty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify owr opinion.
Qur conclusions are hased on the awdit evidence obtained up to the dale of vur auditor's report. Howevar, fitture events or
corditions may cause the company to cease ko continue as a goirg concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structuze and conkent of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
Firancial Statements represent the underlying transactons and events in o mwomer that achieves Fair presentation.

We commuricate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
auclit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our acdit,

Report on Other Legal Requirements

s required by the Kenyan Companies Act we report to you, based on our audit. thar:

i) we have obtained ail the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purpnees of auraudit;
ii) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company, so far a5 appears from our exemination af those hanks,;

arwd
i} the company’s statement of financial positien and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of

Account
The engugement partner responsible for the audit resulting in tids independent anditor's report is CPA Joy V. Bhatt - Practicing

/xmﬁ Na. 992, e

Certified Public Aecountants (K)

Nairobi.
Dates__* 8705/ 252y

An Independant rmamiar i & Moore Global Mepeark Lirsded



MX AFRICA LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

Notes 2023

Kshs.
Other operating income 3 10,000
Administrative expenses 4 {1,034,;40}
Other operating expenses 5
Profit from operations = (1,024,540)
Finance costs 6 (874,029)
Loss before tax (1,898,569)
Income tax expenses 11
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the company

(1,898,569)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the
owners of the company (1,898,569)

e

Note:
The notes on page 10 to 18 form part of these financial statements.




MX AFRICA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

Notes

At 1 April 2022

Net loss for the period

At 31 March 2023

At 1 April 2023

Net loss for the period

At 31 March 2024

12




MX AFRICA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

Notes 2023

Kshs.
ASSETS
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 8 10,134,825
Amounts due from related party 11 7.086,400
Cash in Hand and at bank 9 99 834

17 321,059
Non Current Assets
Amounts due from related party 1 -
Investment in Subsidiary 14 54,925,000

s o 54,925,000

TOTAL ASSETS 72,246,059
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 290,900
Current tax payable 11 -
ittt oz’ et GRS T ——— S T
Non Current Liabilities g
Amounts due to related party 1 65,688 053
S s AT et -fﬁ.fﬂ,lﬁ]
Fquity
Issued Capital 12 11,000,000
Accumulated losses 1 el (4,732.89%4)
i s b SR D N S S0 _ﬂ ._,:_ R
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 72,246,059

The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved for issue by the board of directors on

15th MM};«:! were signed on their b

:;l;mﬁll Gandhi = Director

®-

Emily Oduor - Head of Finance

o

Dipak Raval - Director




MX AFRICA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax
Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:-
Interest expense

2023
Kshs.

(1,898 569)

809,953

Operating (Loss)/Profit before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease/ (increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/ (Increase) in related party balances

Increase/ (decrease) in directors account
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated (used)/from operations

Interest paid

(1,088,616)

(1.377,030)
31,145.278

(10,000)
78,550

28,748,182

(809,953)

Net cash (used)y from apcmtfng__;‘_ﬁvfm

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Intangible asset
Investement in Subsidiary

Z7 938,129

Net cash used in l‘muﬁng activities

(28,787 ,500)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year (Note 13) R

(28,787 500)

(549,271)

HW105

Cash and cash equivalent at end of year (Note 13)

99 834




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

MX Africa Limited is incorporated and domiciled in Kenva under the Kenyan Companies Act as
a private company limited by shares. The address of its registered office and principal place of
business is L. K. No. 1870/11/236 The Pride Rock, No. 6 Donyo Sabuk Avenue, P.O Box 69952 -
00400, Nairobi. The principal activity of the company is wholesale and retail of all types of
lubricants and oils.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with
the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for
SMEs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. They are presented in Kenya
Shillings(Kshs). The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis except where otherwise
stated in the accounting policies below:

a Revenue recognition
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed.
Revenue from sale of services is recognised upon performance of the service and customer
acceptance based on the proportion of actual service rendered to the total services to be
provided. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net
of discounts and VAT,

b Impairment of tangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
The recoverable amount represents the greater of the net selling price and the value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrving amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
¢ Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All ot
classified as operating leases. Fo A




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

¢ Leases (contin
Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the company at the fair
value of the leased property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the
inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss.
Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

d Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment property, intangible assets,
and investments in associates are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment,
the recoverable amount of any affected asset {or group of related assets) is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount. If estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying
amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Similarly, at each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment by comparing the
carrying amount of each item of inventory (or group of similar items) with its selling price less
costs to complete and sell. If an item of inventory (or group of similar items) is impaired, its
carrying amount is reduced to selling price less costs to complete and sell, and an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of
related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount (selling price less
costs to complete and sell, in the case of inventories), but not in excess of the amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {group of related
assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

e Leasehold land
Leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease.

f Translation of foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at rates
ruling at the transaction dates, Assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date which ex pressed in
foreign currencies are translated into Kenya shilling at rates ruling at that date. The resulting
differences from conversion and translation are dealt with in the profit and loss account in the
year in which they arise.

g Borrowing costs
All barrowing costs are recognised in net profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h Cash and Cash equivalents
These comprise cash on hand and at bank, bank overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to and
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Investments in quoted shares are initially recognised at the transaction price and subsequently
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined using the quoted bid price at the reporting date.
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at the transaction price. Most sales are made
on the basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. Where credit is
extended beyond normal credit terms, receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that the
amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

j Financial liabilities
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the transaction price (including transaction costs).
Trade payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest.
Interest bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

k Share capital, share premium and dividends
Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity. Any
amounts received from the issue of shares in excess of the par value are classified as 'share
premium’ in equity. Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are
declared.

I Provision
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation.

m Com ives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation in the current year.

N Leasing and hire purchase commitments
Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, which are those where
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have passed to the company, are
capitalised in the balance sheet and depreciated over their useful lives.




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

1 ACC ING ICIES tinued

o Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profits defer from net
profit as reported in the income statement as it is adjusted in accordance with the Kenyan
Income Tax Act. The company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the differences between the
carrying amounts of the assets and the liabilities in the financial statements on the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit (known as temporary differences), and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxable profits in
the future and only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authorities and an entity within the company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis,

p Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful

receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the vear end. Bad debts are written
off in the year in which they are identified.

q Employee benefits - post-employment benefits

The company and its employees also contribute to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF), a
national defined contribution scheme. Contributions are determined by local statute and the

company's contributions are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they relate,

3 OTHER INCOME

Unrealised exchange gain/(Loss)
Commission income

Other income

Interest Received




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

2023

4 ADMINISTRATIVE ES Kshs
Auditors remuneration 250,000
Legal & Professional fees 80,463
General Expenses 2
Unrealised Foreign exchange loss 450,230
Subscriptions 61,956
Stamp duty 191,891
Total administrative expenses 1,034,540

2023

5 ER OPERATIN NSES Kshs

Penalties and fines

2023

6 FINANCE COSTS Kshs
Bank charges and commission 64,076
Interest expenses 50 809,953
874,029

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The following items have been recognised as expenses (income) in determining profit before tax:

2023
Kshs
Auditor's remuneration 250,000
2023
8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Kshs
Vat receivable 159,724
Accrued income =
Other receivables 997510
10,134 825
At 31 March

9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank

2023




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

2023

10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Kshs
Trade payables 15,000
Other payables 25,900
Accrued Expenses 250,000

290,900
2023

11 TAXATION Kshs

a Income Statement
Current tax applicable rate 30% #
Tax charge =

b Balanc
At 31 March 2023
Corporation tax for the year -
At 31 March 2024 ¥ L -

¢ Reconciliation of tax charge to expected tax based on
accountin it
Accounting profit before tax (1,898,569)
Tax applicable rate of 30% (569,571)
Tax effect of(expenses not deductible for tax )/non
taxable income 568,571

11

i) Amounts due from related party (Short term)

ii) Amounts due from related party (Long term term)

Current tax charge 0

RELATED PARTIES
The company is related to other companies which are related through common shareholding or

common directorships. The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Maximus Global FZE (Short term)
CQuantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited

S o

Maximus Global FZE (Short term)




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

11

iii

T
111

2023
RELATED PARTIES {continued..) Kshs
) Amounts due to related party
SKG Energy PTE Limited 44779253
Maximus International Limited 19,844 567
Cuantum Lubricants (E. A} Limited 1,064,233
"""" & A 65,688,053

= T —— T s

) Additional information to the financial statements for the half year ended 31st March 2024

Related party Disclosures:

Names of the related parties and description of relationship

a) List of Related Parties

Holding company Maximus International Limited
Subsidiary Company Quantum Lubricants (E.A) limited
Fellow subsidiary Maximus Global FZE

Subsidiary Company of Maximus Global |Maximus Lubricants LLC

FZE

Person having control over the company |Aniruddh Gandhi

Enterprises over which Person/ close SKG Energy PTE LTD | I:[unneﬂy known as SKG
family member have control or significant |International Holdings Pte Lid)
influence

Deepak Raval
Directors Murali Krishnamoorthy
Aniruddh Gandhi




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

11 RELATED PARTIES [continued..)

i) Additional information to the financial statements for the half year ended 31st March 2024
A (continued..)
b) Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties

Interest expense
Maximus International Limited 7,676,048

Interest income
Maximus Global EZE 1,613,481

Loan given received back during the year
Cuantum Lubricants (E.A) limited 14,381,148

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

[Other Payables

SKG Energy PTE LTD 14,548,535 44,779,253
Loan Receivable and Interest receivable®

Maximus Global FZE 22,587 608 7,086,400
|Quantum Lubricants (E.A) limited 14,381,148 -

Loan payable (including interest, if any)
Maximus International Limited 86,368,787 19,844,567
Eua_ntum Lubricants (E.A) limited 631,154 1,064,233




MX AFRICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2024

12 SHARE CAPITAL
ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED
130,000 Ordinary shares of Kshs 100/ = each

ISSUED & FULLY PAID UP
110,000 Ordinary shares of Kshs 100/= each
Share Application Monies

13 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingencies existing at the year end.
14 INVESTMENTS
(a) Investment in Subsidiaries

(i) Investment in Quantum Lubricants (E.A) Limited

(i) 100% shareholding of 100 Ordinary Shares each at Kshs 100/ =
Subsidiary by virtue of 100% voting rights and control.

oz

13,000,000

11,000,000

11,000,000

54,925,000

54,925,000




MX AFRICA LIMITED
TAX COMPUTATION - 2024

PIN NO:P051714920C
Loss before tax (5471,848)
Add:
Interest disallowed 7,676,048
Fines and penalties 30,000
7,706,048
2,234,200
Less:
Interest income (1,613 ,481)
Unrealised Foreign exchange loss (646,881)
(2,260,362)
Adjuted business loss for the year (26,162)
Losses brought forward: 2m9 (859459)
2020 (396,928)
201 (570,697)
2022 (513,882)
2023 (446,495)
(2,787 A71)
Tax loss to carry forward: (2,813,633)
INTE INCOME
Interest income 1,613,481
Total tax liability - Due on or before 31,/07 /2024 484,044
Installment Tax to pay
1st installment Tax due on or before 20/07 /2024 133,112 134,000
2nd installment Tax due on or before 20/09/2024 133,112 134,000
3rd installment Tax due on or before 20/12,/2024 133,112 134,000
4th installment Tax due on or befare 20/03 /2025 133,112 134,000
532,449 536,000
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CNK and Associates LLP (pubai Branch)

Independant Auditor's Report
To the Sharesholders of MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC, Ras Al Khaimah, UAE
Report on the audit of financial statements

Opinign

We have audited the financial statements of MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC, (*The Company”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2024 and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at March 31, 2024 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report
We are indapendent of the Company in accordance with the Intermnational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Company's financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBEA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw your attention to Note No. 3.13 of the financial statements, where in management discloses payable of AED
9,142 802 owed to Neo lubritech FZ-LLC which the Company has offset against gross receivable of AED 14,148 498 from
Neo lubritech FZ-LLC by the parent company Maximus Global FZE, resulting in a net receivable of AED 5 005 696 from
Neo lubritech FZ-LLC in the books of Maximus Global FZE. This offset is based on a tripartite agreement dated March 25,
2024, among Maximus Global FZE, Maximus Lubricant LLC, and Neo lubritech FZ-LLC

Qur opinion on this matter s unmodified.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Managemaent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and
for such intarnal control as management determines ik necessary 10 enable the preparation of inancial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management aithar intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do 30 Those
charged with governance are rasponsible for ovérseaing the Company's financial reporting procass.
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CNK and Associates LLP (pubai Branch)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audif of the Financial Statemeants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranfee that an audit conducied in accordance with 1SAs will abways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considered matenal i, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgements and maintain professional skepiicism throughout
the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emror, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepreseniations, or the ovemide of internal control
» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on ihe effectiveness of the internal conirol

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company lo cease 1o continue as a going concermn.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represant the undarlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

» Obtain sufficient appropriale audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the malters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
thesa matlers in our auditor's report unlass law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in axtremaly
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication
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CNK and Associates LLP (Dubai Branch)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law Mo {32) of 2021, we report that for the year ended March 31, 2023

» We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

« The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in ali material respects, with the applicable provision
of the Hamriyah Free Zone Authority, and the memorandum of association of the company.

* The Company has maintained proper books of account;

» The financial information included in the Directors report is consistent with the books of accounts of the company.

+ Note 27 reflects material related party transaction and the terms under which they were conducted.

= Based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has coma to our attention which causes us
to believe that the Company has contravened, during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 any of the
applicable provisions of the Hamriyah Free Zone Authority or provisions of its Memorandum of Association which
would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at March 31, 2024 and

* No social contributions were made during the year.

For and on behalf of
CNK & Associates LLF- Dubai Branch

Alkshay Thomas Sam
Partnar

Registration Number- 1313
Data: May 10, 2024

Place: Dubail, UAE
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MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arah Emirates Dirhams)

Partieuiar es 2003-34 -
ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Pecparty, Fiast and Equipesarts 4 1,107,578 1,374,933
imsangible Avmes s 5421 8302
Capital Work in Progress & 3573 195713
2a Tenm Depanits and L 700,000 750,000
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS Limn TABG56
CURRENT ASSETS

Cush and Cash Equivalents (] 1028 243,188
Inventory o 733,081 1,104 333
Accounts and Cther Receivables 1 2453305 3,516,585
Due fram Relaed Pany 12 nasn 1291975
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,562,586 7ABBAST
TOTAL ASSETS DETETL 3917435
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

dhars Caprinl 300,000 300,000
Retained Earm:ng: 1488301 (1,096,322 )
Sttutory Resarves 150,000 .
Sharcholders’ Current Account $42 300 $42.300
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1490681 @s4m)
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trudie Payobles 13 690 2,506 457
Othar Current Lishilises and Provigion 14 LILNE ] 197,961
Advance from Customers (L] 1915 1607
e 1o Related Pasty 14 560,170 048119
Current Hank Borrowings I8 1,393 960 .72
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1848474 S341.900
NON CURRENT LIARILITIES

Lisan Payable b Relaled Pasty " 3,908 399 1,505 299
HNan=C urrent Hank Bomowings " 61,399 08T
Ermplayee End of Service Benefits " 145,443 33,174
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 4d1L 163 4319847
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,741,318 9917425

The accampanying nates form am integral part of these Mnancial siatements,
The repart of the suditars’ Is 16t aut o8 page -1,

FOR
MAXI CANTS LLE

N\

ANAND MULEY
MAMNAGER
Dwte Muy 10, 2024

Flace United Arab Emirstes

Fage 4



MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAR EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{Amount in Arsh Emirates Dirbams)

Ntes 023-24 022-13
Hevenue b ] 26,140,954 B335 52
Less Costof Revenue n {21,430 084 ) {7,611 85T)
GROSS PROFIT / (LOSS) 4.710,350 1724035
Cither imcome n 135 000 4511
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selhng and Marketing Fxpenses fi} 224,731} (228, 793)
Employee Henefit Experses M (914,541) (916,199)
tieneral and Administrabion Expenses 1 (T33.875) 1631,779)
Finance Ciosi b (238,000 [212.489)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES @111247) (1.989.2%0)
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR LT, TH B, 706

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
The report of Use auditory’ i set out on page 1-3.

FOR
MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC

ANAND MULEY \
MANAGER

Date May 10, 2024

Place United Arsb Emiraies

Fage §



MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arabh Emirates Dirhams)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Met Profit / (Loss) for the year
; hy 1,734,703 801,706
Provisean for End of Service Benefits 62 050 1193715
mm-ﬁﬁm 3491 384 20
Finance Cost 238,100 111 489
MMMW‘WBHW 334399 1,497 590
{Inergase) / Decresse in Curment Assety
Inventory hridels] 301,727
mmmm 1,063 264 1302807}
Dheposits, Prepayments and Advances (2.085.990) O, 214)
D from Relued Fary 412447 (420,607
ng bl g
Trude Payahles _ (2407 764 2,092 582
Cither Current Lisbilites and Provision | (162, 767)
Advance from Cusiomers s (142.33%)
Dhue 1o Related Pay QR.457.949) it
End of Service Benefits . {1, 534)
Net cush flow from{ used in) operating sctivities 1,221,498 1254100
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additiond w property, plamt and equipmeni's a1 (3.705)
Additions to Capital Work in Progress (10,000} (H0811)
Sale of Motor Vehicle L
Additions 1o Intangible A -
Long term depodits and prepayiments 50,000 -
Met cash flow fromi{used in) investing activities (48.86T) (406)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance cost {234, 1o (212.40%)
Loun Paysble 1o Related Party . i
Mon-current bank hormewings 526 (26.724)
Curment hank borrowings 16734 1473
Net cash flow Tromused i) fnancing actrvities 1149460 (LI
Mot Increase / (Decremse) in cash snd cash equivalonts 113,902) 170,700
Cash wnd canh equivalems at al the 431 12483
IVALENTS AT THE END OF THE ¥ 130,38 2.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Mnancial siafemenis.
The veport ol the sudiiom’ is sef oni on page -3

FOR
MAXIMUS NTS LILC

ANAND MULEY
MANAGER

ke May 10, 2024

Place |/nled Arab Emirstes




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAR EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN EQUITY FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{Amaunt in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Particulars Share Capital Statutory Reserves o0 Ny Toet
Balance as st April 01, 2022 S 0 i1,89%,008) %42 300 {1,085,728)
Additions dunng the vear . E =
Net Profit Loss) for the year - - B0 To8 . 1,706
Bulynce as st March 31, 2023 b, o0 - {1633 242 300 1254002
Balance as at April 01, 2023 ) e - {1L09632D) 42,300 (254022
Addinons during the year . 150,000 " 150, 000
Nt Profit #Loss) for the year 1734703 2,734,700
Transfer to fELerves the year - 1 130,000) {150, I
Bulnnce as 0t March 31, 3024 i 150000 1488381 542,300 148068

The iecompanylng sates form an integral part of these Anancial ststements,

The report of the suditors’ s set out on page 1-1.

FOm
MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC

ANAND MULEY
MANAGER

Date May 10, 2024
Plisce Unbted Arab Emirates




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 3024
{Amaunt in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLO

As por Supplemental Deed o 2 To MOA passed on December 05th 2019 and attested on December 16ty 2019, name of the compary changed fram
“Pacific Lubricants LLC" 1o "Maximis Lubncant LLC™

MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC (Previously PACIFIC LUBRICANTS LLC), is & Limited Linbility Company established on 05 06 2017 and registered
vide license no 26000532 with the RAK Foonomic Zome, RAK, Unied Arsh Emirates The company aiso 13 registered with Government of Ras Al
mwﬂmmmmwmmmwmwmmnhwlc—
Manufscturing, The registered office of the company 15 situated in RAK Economic Zone, RAK, UAE

The issued, subscribed and pasd up capital till 26.02.2018 of the company was AED 300,000/~ divided it 300 shares of AED 1000 sach held by the
sharcholder as mentianed below'

# Shareholders { Beneflckal Owaer) » % of Share Now Share Amsouni

.Llhh Abdulls  Mohummed  Kardah UAE % 10 153,000

1 Pacific Petro Tech FTE LIAE A% A0 147 0600
Jowl Joave Leee  Jeasee

The issued, subseribed and paid up capital of the company after 26 02 3018 was AED 300,000 divided imto 300 shares of AED 1000 sach) held by the
shareholder as mentioned bolow

o m;wm_m; Natnality e of Share N Shares A maanl

IT'lllh Abdulls  Mohammed  Kardali

Albloosh UAE 1% 143 143, 00
2 Maxamus Global FZE UAE 45 147 147 Don
ol 100% ] Jone

Addendum 3 to the Memarndum of Associstion was sssted by the UAE courts on June 14, 2020 giving effect 10 sharsholdery’ resolution dated January
I, 2020, resolving o amend clause 2 of anticls 12 and remove clause 3 of arcle 12 of the ongimal Memorsndum of Asscanon

Amended clause 1 of article |2 reads as Tollows
mm*m*mﬂmmmlﬂhﬁﬂﬂ“ﬁm-ﬁm%##

Jram Jamsary 1, 3020
%olShareln %ol Sharv i

# Shareholders (Beneficial (hwner) Satlasality  profitles from  profilles el
January 01, 2030 Jansary §1, D020
Taleh  Ahdulla Mohammed Kardali 5
lM'hrl LAE 1'% 1%
2 Maximua Cilobal FZE UAE P )

Toal 100% T

“Rekferdum 3 of e Memorandum of Association also provides 1or clause 3 of wicle T3 readh 3 foliows

ipon Hguidkation of the company eoch pariner el be entiled able for the acommslated profitelors, el amd labifitie m Gdlow g proportion

e after s berfury
# Sharchalders (Beneficlal (waer) Satimmaliny P sieadum )
I Tuleb Abdulln Mohsmmed Kardali Alblooshi UAE (1] 1%
1Humnﬂhl-!ﬂ.! LIAE % A
Toml 1% 1%
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MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
HAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAE EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirbams)

Amdmnmmm“mmww

MMMHWMNMHMMM I, 2033 The application of these new and revised [FRSs does nol have sy
muterial impact in prior years bt may affect the accounting in cumment and For Fisture Tnssclions or aTargements

mummm-m:nmm“n
Thmmxunmmt—uﬁmpﬁni_danmth
armendments explain an entity can dentify & matenal sccounting poli To supper the amendment. the Management has appled the *four-sp
matenality process” described in IFRS Practice Ststement 2 as below g

Step 1. The entity identifies information that has the patential to be material

Step 2 The enity then assesses whether the information identified in Stop | is masenal Im making this ssacusment, the entity aeeds ' comsider
quaantitutive isiee) and qualimtive (nature) factors.

Slep 3 h-mwhmwhmmmmmnu—hmc_dmm
Step 4 The entity then steps back and sssesses the information provided m the financial staicmenis s & whole It meexds to coneider whether the
mh-munhmmwimmdhmmwmmquunmw-h—uu
mﬁuMHIHMMMmﬁmwmmﬁmh—hpﬂ_h
Step 2

Defaition of Accounting Eviimates { Amendments in 145 8)

The amandments replace the definition of & change in sccounting estimates with a definition of sccounting extimates. Linder the new defmtion,
Accounting estimates an: "monstary amounts in financiad statements that ane subject 1o MERIUREMENt uncartainty” Ennities dovelop scoounting sxtimanes
Hmmﬁpﬂnﬂnhhﬁ-ﬁmuh“nnmhmmm The amcndments clanty that »
change in accaunting estimade that reaults from new mformation or new devebopments is not the cormection of an ermor

New standards, smendments and interpretstions nof yet offective from Janwary | 2023 and sot early adopied:

E Mective for
Now and revised [EY. ST TS annasl ey
- Ieginning on or slier
Lense Linhibity in o Sale and Leaschack (Amendments w [FRS 16) Jamamry |, 2024
The amendment clarifies how u seller-bessoe subsequently measures sale and leaschack
frandactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS |5 w be scoounted for as o sale
MNon-curvest Lisbilities with Covenants (A mendmenis b LAS 1) Jamuary i, P24

The amendment clanfies how conditkons with which an entity must comply within teeive
manths afber the reporting perod alfect the classification of » lablity

Supplier Finance Arrangements (A mendments in IAS 7 and IFRS 7) Jummary 1, JOl4
The amendments add disclosure requirements, and “signposta’ within existing disglosure

requurements, that ask antities 1o provide qualitative and quantitative information shoi

aupplier finance smengements.

Laek of Excha ngeability | Amendments to LAS 21) Junuary |, F}4

The wnendments contsin guidance W specily when a currency s exchangeable and how o
dotermine ihe axchange reie when i s not

Munagement wntvcepates that these [FRS and amendmenty will be adopied in the Nnancial stabsmants in e imial perd whan thi, becoms mandison by
elfective The impast of these standards and amendments are currently being assasied by the management

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

51 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B
The financial watement have been propared in accordance with Imemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) nawed by the inmrmancnal
Agcounting Standerds  Board (IASD) and interprotations issued by the International Financial Reporing Interpretshons. Commines ((FRIC) hal s
rabviend ko the opersiions of the company




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004
{Amount in Arab Emirsies Dirhams)

3.2 ACCOUNTING CONVENTION —
mmwmmmmmmmmmﬁmm—um The sccounting policres have
been consistently applied by the establishment during the penod undes review

3.3 REVENLUE RECOGNITION
IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers

IFES |5 establishes a comprehensive Framewark irm;-hﬁu.hu-ud-d-ﬁumkm It replacexd 1AS 18 Revenue, LAS
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

Revense from contracts with customery

Under Wﬁls.mnm‘ﬂm:mmm#h“umm—uquh_ﬁdm-a
PUing in tme of over time - requires judgement

The Company recegnizes revenue from sale of goods based on 4 five siep model a3 et out in IFRS 15

Step It ldentify the contractis) with 8 customer hmuﬁunm“m.-mum“nﬁd
obligntions and sets oul the ariteria for every coneract that must be met

Seep 2: Mdantify the performance obligations in the contract Amwbhn-mnn_ﬁﬂlm—nw-inpuuh
custamer

Siep X Dﬁﬁuhmw.mmmuhmdﬂuh—hihﬁhtmmuh“u“h
mmummw:m.mmmuwaﬂm

Step 4 Allocate the iransaction price 10 the performance obligations in the contract For & contract that has mers than ose performance obhgation, B
Emmﬂummmamnmmmnnmumumdm-mu&“
Expects to be antitled in exchangs for satisfying sach performance obligation
hnpﬁﬂmnmwmwn:h-ﬁuuﬁﬁulmm

mrnmmlmm-dmmmﬁMH-udhmm“u

| mmmmdmmmmmmmmcwm-hcmmw

2. The Company's performance creates or snhances un assat that the customer controls as the assel is created of enhanced. or

3 The Company's perfarmance doas hat creats sn smot with an allemative use 1o the Company and the eniity has an cnforceabls right o payment for
performance completed 1o dats
Fwwfmnumm“ﬂhmm“mmmmuwdlum-ms-umm-
satisfied,

Hule of goods

In relation to the Company's sctivities related sale of goods, in which the sale of goods snd delivery is generally expecied 1o be the anby performance
obligation, adoption of [FRS 13 did not have amy major impact on the Company's revenus and profil of loss. The Compasy concluded that the revence
recognition will ocour af a point in Hme when control of the asset 15 wansferred  the cutiomer, generally on delivery of the gocds or collecton of goods.
by cugtomerns.

Adviences received from cusismens

Cenerally, the Campany recaives only short-term sdvances from its customers. They sre prosenied a3 pan of made and other payables Accordngly. thers
are o finencing compononts in the Company's contracts with cusiomen.

urmrlmggmm:qumm

Fixed nanetn are stviod at oost less sccumulaied deprocistion and impasrment losses, if esy Cont inebudes expenditiorss (hat are directly stinbutable 1o the
icquisition of the asset. Depreciation i recognared in the profit and hoss sccount on a strasght line basis aver the estimated weful lives of the msets The
catimated uselal lives of the assets aro as under

Asnet Cluss
Furniture & Office Fquipment's
Muotor vehicles

Plant & Muchinery { Block Asseis)
Plant & blachinery (CiTice Labombory )
Plani & Machinery (General)

suu—pE

A5 INANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible mssets soquired, are sated @i cost leas accumulated amormzabon and any sccummilaled iImpurment lowmel Amorrabon o charged o the

statarmant of comprahenave income on & virsight line basis, over the evimated usefl lves of intangible soets, unbess weh lves e indefine

Trucamark « |0 yowrs
Subsequant expanditure on capitaliged inangible assets i3 capitalised only when it increases e Ruure benefil smbodsed i the specific s o which o

relies

Page 10




MAXTMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 2004
(Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

L6 INVENTORIES

of completion and ﬂﬁmhmdwﬂu#ﬂunmﬁu-m

3.7 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts Receivable represenis amounts falling due s on Balince Sheet date Accounts recervable ars normally requunng the amounts o be recsived

within &0-130 days of the date of invoice Rad debts are written off a5 snd when they srise Accounts receivable
ovesghein are smbed net of provison. for doubeful

38 ACCOUNTS & OTHER PAYABLES

Payables are stated ot nominal amaunts payable for goods or services rendered

1.9 PROVISIONS _ P e —— T — T
| are recognized when the compeny has o present obhgation as a resub of past event & it 15 probebie that the outflow of resowrces will B

required to sertle the obligation

310 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks

411 FOREIGN CURRENCY

Functional and presentation corrency
Thﬂmmnwmhummhnmﬂhmﬂhmw-dmm

Transction and balances

Transactions in hnmmn“mh&mmmﬁmﬂmuhmﬂ Monctary sty
nndl labilities expeessed in Forsign currencies a2 the: balance sheet date ane tranalated o nstes of ewchangs ruling o 1he balance sheet date Fachangs
differencas ansing in these are deall with the sistement of comprehentive income

L11 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS & KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Tha proparation of financil statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make [udgments, estimates & sumpbons that alfect the
wlwnﬂmmlhm“ﬂn habtlines, income & experses The eutsmates & associsbed msemptons e besed on
histononl experience and other fsctor that afe contidered 1o be relevant and ressonable under the circumstances.

Fanimales & underlying msumptions are reviewed on 1 going haiss Rewinmns bo scominling salimiles e rcoghised i the permd o whach D cilimale

15 rawlaed, if the revision affects only that penad, of i the pened of revision and future perods o the revision affeces both current & fune panods
Dunng the year the company Maximus Global FZE (MGE) has entered into tnparty sgresment weih it subsidary Maoomies Lubricant LLC (MLL) and Neo
lubritech FZ-LLC (MEO) 10 set off recaivable and payable balances Wherin MOF and NEC sgres o set of then recoivabie ssd payside balances
iiermally Smlarty. MLL and NEC also agreed 1o set off thesr recesvable and payable halances insrmally Afier the sotting off recersable and paysble
bulance of MEC in reapective books, MOF had net receivable balance from NEC) and MLL had et payable balance o NED Furthes, MOF ML aned
WEQ agreed to set off net balance receivable by MOF from NED sgainss net balance payabde by MILL o NEC

Hevonciblation of Neo balanees in MUGEF and MILL bosks

rilesular AED

L abitors in the books of MUEF 1371.138
L reditars in the boaks of MO F [} i
Mt Hocelvalsle (o the Baols of MGF from SEO 14140 458
Lebions in the books of MLL 3,952 406 |
|rud|m in the books of MLL 14,605,208
Mot Payahle (n the Boaks of MLL 1 NEQ 9.142.802 §
I('“hﬂ'llﬂhﬂhhhh“ﬂﬂﬂflﬁ“ﬂ“#hhﬂmhﬁ_

ML 1,008 e
LI1ISTAT ¥ v

n accordance with Law W 2 of 2015, & manimum of 10% of the net profit of the cormpany o bo be slloceied every yesr fo non diniribuiable

reaivn Sueh sllocalion may coase whin the situlory reurve squals 0% of the pasd up thare capaal




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
HAS AL KHATMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

MNOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004
(Amount in Arab Emirstes Dirhams)

Lid LEASES

mmmmmmupﬂmmmmuhdm 01, 2019 The company slso slecied 10 use the recognamon
wwhrhumuhwuh“hm;m:ﬂ!-ﬂ;uhﬂﬁh—mh“hm
st is of low value

Furniture &
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT'S Office Miater Plast & Tosal
Equipment's wiehbthe lachiners

Assel Cost
%hﬁmuuaﬂﬂ.!ﬂl 168,470 76 a2s 1548 650 3090548
Additions durng the year 38 - - ims
Deeductions dunng the year - 3 A -
{losing balamnce as on March 31, 2023 172,178 176,825 P 3097 450
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening halunce as an April 01, 2022 145 667 120,487 1.30% 424 L& 578
Uiepreciation for the year 9,324 45,365 294 450 363,199

witten hack - - - .
C balance as on March 31, 2023 158,991 175851 LAHT NT4 717
Asset {ost
Orpening balance as an April 01, 2023 172,173 176,825 144 850 1397 420
Addditons during the year 4,513 &7.241 16,506 sy
Deductions during the year . 112,000 . i12.000)
Closing balance as an March 31, 2024 1 TG 130064 1965, 150 JATLIM
Acenmibited Deprecistion
(ipening balnnce as on April 01, 2023 155,991 179,052 L&A 874 Laaxzm?
Depreciation for the year 7518 47,182 190343 M
Dt tioms dunng the year - (LT = 14613y
Closling balamce us on March 31, 1024 1 6, 5000 218401 1981419 10843286
st ook vales s oo Mevch 1, 3033 (7 S ™ .S 77
Net Book vahue us an March 31, 2024 10,181 113,448 3.7 Lien s
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 10124 w1223
Cipening balance 6.2 .18
Additsons during the year - 4,
Les Amortlzsticn the year [LLIY] {381)
Shosing helnats 7 - S

Imangible asset, o regisered irademark | MOTOMAX), developed by the company dunng the vew and regiered with the Trademarnks Uspartment of
Minisiry of Economy UAE, recorded on Cigiober 3 2030 for  persod of 10 years.

Intangible assets wre vialed ol cost lesn accumulated amonizabon and any sccumulated impairment lodaes Amonizanon o charged 1o e yatement of
oomprehensive income on a siright ling basis over the estimated useful lives of intangble sssets, unbess such bves are indefine

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 00334 m13-13
Opaning balance® 4570 STENE -]
Additions during the year® 10,000 sl
Llosing bainnces et % R

*Capital Work In Progress represents capital expenditure in relation io fire sulely The ssel shall be tranaferred o Property, plant and equipment’s on
completvon and depreciaied over itk estimalod wielul hife. Howewer, required approval from ihe fire salety depaniment & yet o be mosved Hence.
transfier of the progect in Propeny, plant & Bgquipment (s awsited

Page 12




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
HAS AL KHATMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

& CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS- Contimwed

CWIP / Intangible Assets under
development Amount in CWIP for s period of
Total
Less than 1 Mare than 3
Yeur 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Yeur .
Az af Mareh 31, 2024 |

i1} Projects in progress 10,000 40411 68,709 246,413 365,713
(1t} Projects temporanily suspended . - - .

As at March 31, 2023
i1} Projects in progress 40,611 68,709 103,019 143,354 145713
(i) Projects temporanly suspended - - - ’ 3

LONG TERM DEPOSITS Ia13-14 213
Secunty Deposits

Clesiug Bulancy E &4, i)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o214 21-13
Cash in hand 31,050 45118
Cheque In Hand ¥ 906 -
Bolances with banks 61310 1900
EMH Halance R e I
INVENTORY 0124 21-1
Inventory wi the end of the year

faw hlaterial 355 509 64800
Fackaging Muteral 240,744 251,094
Finashod Croody 136364 91,053
Slathg Dehess S LRt
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13-4 all-1
Acouunts receivables 1,087 84 2IT4 A3
Lass Provision for Expecied Credit Loss {11,950) (3.932)
Lther receivables 1378309 1,246 294

Closing Bekence

Manugement asseased the expocied crodit loases aa prescnbed by the rmquirements of IFRS 9 sgunal Accounts and other recervabley and oroaied &
provision of 13,950 AEL on the Accounis reciervables The company has spplied the smplified spprosch o messurnng the expocted credil bosses wivech
s Nifetime expocted loas allowance for all Accounts snd other meceivables  This impasment methodology hes nol reeched i ey oo loes 0
Accounts and other recervables

Pags 13




MAXIMUS LUBRFCANTS LLC

RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAE EMIRATES
Mmmmmunmmm!mmmnm

{Amount in Arah Emirates Dirhams)

IﬁMJMJE_
Particulars enshnd

Months

1-2 years

2-3 Years

More than 3
Years

Taoial

As at Mareh 31, 2024

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Considered Good

1{|ij Undisputed Trade Receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit rigk

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivahle -
eredit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable -
Considered Ciood

{v) Disputed Trade Receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

{wi) Disputed Trade Receivabic -
credit impatred

Total

Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Total Trade Recelvable

1,061,920

1,061.920

1,061,920

7,188

EALY
TI9
7905

200
LTI

19328

10328
10328

1.087.884

1087 KR4
{13,950

107394

As at Mareh 31, 2023

(i) Undisputed Trade Heceivable -
Considered Good

(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

{i11) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
crodit impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivable -
Coansidered CGood

iv) Disputed Trade Receivable «
which have significant increase in
credit risk

ivi) Disputed Trade Receivable -
oredil impaired

Total

I.ess. Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Total Trade Receivable

1249 866

1,249 8646

1810

s

1200066

11,810

1680

g:8

10328

10328
5,164
15,492

1.275.684

2275684
u.sn;’
2.270,152

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

M1l

Lrepumits
Propaymanis.
Murgin with Bank
Lasarvs wndd Advances
Duties and wxes

LAl
114N

LITZAIE
1,18

l‘hl, Halanee

Margin with Bank includes deposit kept with Rank agaimat invoice financing loan

DUE FROM RELATED PARTY

LTIl

Musimus Glabal FZE- Sales

Advance o Maximus Olabal FER (towards puschases )

SK.G PTE Lig * {Othar recoivables

f.‘hl:hhnl

1,144 71%
104 4%

1,281,378

Page 14




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS L1LC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirbams)
13 TRADE PAYABLES 2314 WI-13
Sundry creditons o8 643 2 506,457
Closing Balusce 3693 -
Particulars Less than | More than3 |
year 1-2 years 2-3 Years Years Tnl
As at 31 March 2024
Disputed Dues TH R4 2435 2,786 14,364 98.693
Undisputed Dues o
As at 31 March 2023
Disputed Dues . . - - .
Undisputed Dues 2411916 4978 I 19,547 1,506 457
14 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISION 12824 022-13
Druties and wces 124,851 -
Ciher payables 184,332 145,768
Provisions for expenses 1,149 E13
Closing Balunce 1613 187 %01
15 ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS 0ld-24 2323
Advance from customers Lra k] 1897
Lhesing Babince T A
16 DUE TO RELATED PARTY

The Company cniers into tansactions with other companies that full within the definiton of o relsbed party contained i LAS 14 Sech transacbons an i#
the mormal course of busingss and a1 8 arma length ransactions with third pames Related parbes comprine companies wider cormman ownerhip and'on
carmman management control Al the end of the reporting penicd, trade and non irade balences with relased partes were o follows.

1013-14 12-13
Macimun Global FZE {Sales) . 1576540
Mascimus Clobal FZE { Other Payables ) %2 470,741
Interest on Loan Mrom Maximus Cilobal FZE . 1000, 838
SKG Hnergy PTE Lid * (Advance against Salas 10, e
Cloning Balance » 0]
17 LOAN PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY 0114 3114
Loan [rom Maximus Global FZE 1,995,299 198819
Llosing Batance . . A

Page 14




MAXTMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

17 LOAN PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY { Continued)

Amasni of
loan or e
SN Type of Barrvwer sdvance in l—:
nature of lan r-
noltanding
As #f 31 March 2024
i) | Promaters ¥ =
i Dhrechors . =
{1} KMPy - [P
iiv) Relatod Parties . 5
M Global FZE J.uds 290 e |
A st 31 March 2023

{i} |Promaters & =

[T —IE. - g

fid) K MPy . =

v Pariey . =
[hﬁu_ Cilobal FLE 1,985 205 [

BANK BORROWINGS pIR T W18
Invoice Finuncing with Hunk 1LM6872
Wehicls Loan &7,
.guu_ Hﬂ
wment poriion
Mon-currant porian &1 399 40,87
M

I ludes interest socrued but note dus AKTY 14,288

Dhuring the year the company has entered imio Invosce financing faciliny with ADCH Bank

As per balance confirmation received from ADCT bank, liability pertaining 1o invoice financing (exchuding sccroed iserest | is AED %41 308 for
Muxsmus Lubncans LLE {MLL) and of 389 274 ia conflrmed for Maximia Global FEE (MGF)

Sinoe all the invoices financed are for purchases of MLL the company has scorued all labikity in MLL books instsad of MGF booka.

E

END OF SERVICE BENEFITS 02314

Opening balance 031374 [LLE P
M Provision made during the yoar A2 050 18T

Las Pud/ sjustrmant during the yuar - (LAM)




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

12 OTHER INCDME

224 M-
apens L6T4 667
'nm S, 130,416 51,534
Prmunlh‘bddlhsmhﬂm 2910 14710
135,000 6,511
13 SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES W3- J73-23
Clearing and Forwarding Expenses 140,334 160,559
Mmmmgﬂu 397 68 204
Toti FETRET] HAT
24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 202324 202213
Salary ™01 62,064
SafT Walfare Benefit 193,750 254,135
! i 31619
25 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES o o
Legal and professional fees* 010 CSTRIE)
Telephone and intemat 38,100 24,048
Trwvelling expenses 205 584 145424
Office. axpecsm 4,539 62,250
Hepairs and mainienance oan Vi 458
Lozx on Sale OF Fixed Adsei 2387 =
Orher Expense 94,082 2302
Provision for Expecied Crodit Loss b 5,532
Tistiil 'IEH &3, T
“includes Remuncration paid 1o auditor of AT 10,000 for sudit and Limited Review for TV 025,30
16 FINANCE COST W3 M-
Interest on boan from related party 199,265 195 288
[iunk charges 1 7811
Intergat on Hiank Financing 16,238
Interest on vehiche loan 4K 5510
Yol 1iA.100 112489
17 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSUKRE
A Mumea of reluted party and desenipuon of relatonship
EEHTM of related
| lolding company == [
Huldung company of Muxims Ubobal F2LE [Manimes internavonal | oeed
Fallow & Cumnium Lubneanis (EA ) Lid
Holding eompany of Quantum Lubncants (F A ) Led X Adrnca Lirnisest
[Parsan having control over the company [
[nterpnaes aver which paroncloss family mambar have comtrol or sgnificant inlence Eﬂ Frengy PTE Lid (formerly knows SR
Jrnmbes Fetrolewm Kesounces Lirmited
Personie| | KMP ) Jrnand Muley | Manage: )

-




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004
{Amount in Arab Emirates Dirhams)

17 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE continued

172, 300 90, e
199 265 199 244

Muximus International Limited - I8,
Waogi s Gllobal FZE 3,000 844 m,:ﬂ
[hregl expense

| *bnsimus Internatvonal Limited - | |
Sule of goods
ﬁm‘l‘mﬂ Cilobal FZE 3,100,421
[SK.C) Energy PTE Lid 4
| Fruight (ncome

[SK.C Energy PTE Lid 1
Masimus Global 23,04

€ The follgwing balances were gutstanding a1 the end of the mponing penod

|Particutar

Uither puyables

Maximua (lobal FZE b B 470,141
L tnde payabies

Masimus Global FZE . 1978, SN
Advanges Paid

Muarmis Cibobal FEZE o

Limibi rucaivabiles

Maximus Global FZE e 1145, 71%
ithar recaivaties

SKL Enengy PTE Lol . 108 A
| Advanges Becgived

SK0 Enargy PTE Lid 810, o

Lasny puvudrle {neluding anderesd, o wny )

Manimus Clobal FZE 1885 4 9WA,1 VT
Salary Payable

Amirudih Ciandha L 4 |
| Anard Muley LY ll:i (Xl




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
RAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amount in Arah Emirates Dichams)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments means Financial Assets, Financial Liabilites and Equity Instrements Financial Assers of the esmabiishment inchade Cash s
cash equivalents, Accounts and other receivables & deposits Financial Liabilities inchude acoounts peysbles, Due to refated parties, Joan pavable 1w
relaied party snd Cther curment ubilines and provisions
MWMHMHMﬂHWMMLMNMMME—hmu-h
Halance Sheet dute.

Hluancial Instruments by categories: ___ 20314 n-n
Finanoial Asvers

Cash and Cash Fquivalents 130,288 M|
Accounts und Other Rcéivebles 1450325 1516583
Deposits 96,308 05
Advances 2600, T4 LIT2418
Flaanctal liabilities

Trade Payubles SuE5 2 504 457
Oither Current Lisbilitses and Provision 36122 257901
Advance fram customer 472 519 1697
Due 1o Related Pasty 580,170 1040119
Loan Payable 1o Related Party 1985299 1,045,206
The main risk ansing from the Company's financial instruments are Currency Risk, Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

u. Currency Risk

©Currency risk 19 the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due 1o changes in foregn exchange rates. The Company's major exposare i
in United Stutes Dollar and Arab Emirsies Dirhams Henoe currency nsk & low

Currency Rish Managessesi
The mujority of the runsactions and halances ane in either UAE dirham or United Stases Dollars and as the two currencias sre pegmed, the currency nak i

msintmingd &t low

b, Crwilit Risk

Creddt nisk 18 the rak that one party 10 o finencisl marument will fail 1o dischange an obligation mnd cause the other party o ncur & financial loss
Financial Assets, which potentsally axpone the establishment 1o credit riak, compriss masmly of bank sccounts and recervables
Credit Misk Managemeni

Company manages credit risk with respect 1o meceivabdes from customens by monmonng in sccordance with defined polices and procedunes Credi risk
i Nimited 1 the carrying value of financial asssts in the balance sheet

Thi company applies [FRS 9 simplified approach io messure expecied credii losses which uses sxpecied credit loss allowsnce for all i rsde recervables.
The company alao seeks 1o limit ity credit rsk by dealing with reputable banks and independently mind parsss with & mensesem of nvetmenl grade

& Interest Habe Risk
The company has no daposiis with banks and financial mstsutions However, the company has interest heanng snecwned loans nd hence the mteres:

rube risk i present
Interesi rale risk Vs nagement
The cumpany has fxed interest rades for cach loans and such rate is i suhject 1o any changes dus i inflanon. Hengs, Inssres mete nak o comadered mo

10 e significant

Pags 19




MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC
HAS AL KHAIMAH, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXDED MARCH 31, 2004
{Amoant it Arib Emirates Dichams)

28 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Tm“m:wmmmqmﬁmm&-&hmum-hﬁ—ﬂm
1% COMPARATIVE FIGURES

MWMMWWMMMWﬂMWWEMNHHM
presantation

30 ROUNDING OFF R
The figures in these financial sacments have bean rounded o the nearsst AED

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these Mnancial statements,
The report of the suditors' is set vut on page 1-1,

FOR
5 LUBRICANTS LLC

AMNAND MULE
MANAGER \
Diaste May 10, 2024

Place Unitedd Arab Emiriies

Paga 20
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors submit their report together with the unaudited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Principle activity of the company is importation and wholesale of various Tubricants and oils.

The company also manufachures lubricants and oils under their brand name Motorol.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The results for the year are as shown on page 5.

The net profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 of Kshs 7,151,619/~ (2023 net profit Kshs
5,588,904/ ) has been transferred to retained earnings,

DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends.

DIRECTORS
The director who served office during the year and to the date of this report wers:-

Aniruddh Rinki Gandhi
Murali Krishnamoorthy

AUDITORS

Moore JVB LLF, the Company's auditors, have indicated their willingness te continue in
office in accordance with section 719(2) of the Kenyan Companies Act 2015,

By order of the board

"

Auﬁ-ud‘ffﬁ Ganidhi - Director Murali Kr};!mm%rthy = Director

Emr'Iy. Oduor - Head of Finance

Diate; 15th May 2024

Page 2




QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES

The Kenyan Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of
the financial year and of the company's operating results for that year. It also requires the
directors to ensure the company keep proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company.

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material ‘misstatement whether due to fraud or error. They also accept
responsibility for designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies and making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state

of the financial affairs of the company as at 31st March 2024 and of its profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the Interational Financial Reporting Standard for Small and
Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act.

Mothing has come to the attention of the director to indicate that the company will not remain a

going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approved by the board af divectors on 15th May 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

|

Auimltdﬁ: Gandki - Divector

&~

Emi!g} Odwor - Head of Finance

oarthy - Thrector

=

Page 3




Moore VB LLP

“ M O O R E Certified Public Accountants (i)

Head Office

The Pride Rock

Mo 6, Donyo Sabuk Seenue

PO Box 630572 - 00400

Mairot, Kenya

T +25420 2003628 /9

T +2%4 20 2622560 /3052

M +254 T30 384 0B84 [ T35 158 042

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT E inofimoorsficom
W rawmamoore- v o

To the shareholders of Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited

Opinian

We have audited the Financial Statements of Quantum Lubricants (E.A) Limited set out on papges & to 26 which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ending 31 March 2024, and notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cuanham
Lubricants {E.A) Limited as at 31 March 2024, and ite financial performance and cash flows for the vear ending 31
March 2024 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and
the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, Our responsibilitiss under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitics for Hhe Audit of fie Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the lndernational Ethics Standards Board for Accounfants
Code of Etiues for Professionad Accountints (Parts A and B} (IE584 Code} and ether independence requirements applicabls
to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IHSBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Kenva. We
belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
Financial statements of the current periad. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial
statements as a whole, and in forming aur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate cpinion on these matters.
We have determuned that there are no Key audit matters to communicate in our report,

Other information

The dirertors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Divectors' Repert as
required by the Kenyan Companies Act, which we obtained prior te the date of this report. Other information does not
include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Pinancial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinien
or any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connechion with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our
knewledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the wark we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Annual Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Kenyan
Companies Act, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the dircctors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
guing concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern hasis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or ko cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Page ¢
Chairman % infernational Limson. Juy W Bhatt, CPA (K], CPS (K], CRA U] ACMA, CSMA,
Farmners Aswin Hothars, CDA [K], FOCA, ATHL. Sahes! Abdulhamid, Bsc [Homsl, CPA (K], A0C8, CIMa Ad. Dig (sl ; : e
1 Liceresed by ICPAK. &4 g Limited Labifty Panne ef

Hansin T, CIA (<), FCCA, P (Hons). Bty bty e Sk o B
Seomr Cansuliant Sslesh V. Pael, BA (Hons), ACA CRA ], CPS (KL
Skl Teg | ke
siates Tojas 3 Bnetr, BSe {Hong), M3C, ACA, CRA [F) A indepardlent memBe: firn of Moars Ciobal Nasiark Lirasd

Officas slso at Morniasa, Kerya | Kermgpek, Uganda



Moore VB LLP

hd MOORE et A

Auditor's responsibilities for the andit of the Annual Financial Statements

Oy objectives are to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditer’s report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
international Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. A lisstatements can arise
from fraud ar error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accardance with Internutional Standards en Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and performn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulling from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misre presentations, or the override of internal contral,

* Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order te design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control

s Evaluate e appropriateness of accounting polivies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriatensss of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accoun ting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
an the company's ability fo continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material unceriainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future svents or conditions may cause the company to cease fo continue as a

*» Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and Hming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

Report on Other Legal Requirements

As required by the Kenyan Companies Act we report to you, based on our audit, that:

i) we have oblained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit

ii) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company, so far as appears from our examination of
those books; and

iif) the company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement with the
books of account.

The engagement partuer responsible for the audit resulting in this independent anditor's report is CPA Joy V. Bliatt -

Practicing certificate No, P92,

Maoore JVB LLP
Certified Public Accountants (K)
MNairobi.

ra ‘;E [
Date: i o ““i*f
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income/ (expense)
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of

the company

Naote:

The notes on page 9 to 26 form part of these financial statements.

Notes

17

2024 2023
Kshs. Kshs.
54119 4M 614,396,814
(490,281 i16) (512,993,527}
53,912,818 101,403,287
56,228,997 (7,542,904)
(7.169,701) (4,964,142)
(56.410,414) (49,751,725)
(5,607,846) (4,953,928
40,953 854 34,190,588
(26,455,574) (20,881,833)
14;49&2@ 13,308,755
- {?,Bﬁ.éﬁu (7.719,851)
7151619 5,588,904




QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3158T MARCH 2024

Share Redesemable Retained Total
capital Preference Shares earnings
Kshs. Kshs. Kshs. Eshs.
At1 April 2022 100,000 136,250,000 (1,140,603) 135,209,397
Met profit for the year 5,588,904 5,588 il
At 31 March 2023 100,000 136,250,000 4,448,301 1AL 798 301
— ==
At 1 April 2023 100,000 136,250,000 4 448 301 111-&,?9@,301’
Met profit for the year 7:151,619 7151619
At 31 March 2024 100,000 136,250,000 11,599,920 147,949,920
- o —— ]
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT alst March 2024

Motes n2q 2023
Kshs. Kshs.

ASSETS
Current Assets
Inventaries 11 73,846,053 O8R4, 165
Trade and other receivables 1z 238,221,206 200,891,961
Amounts due from related party 20 28,08.287 63,197,533
Cash in hand and at bank 13 T 430 531,400

341 Sal, M6 334,505,059
Mon Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 2R058,737 22,835,869
Intangible assets - Under development 15 1851693 -
Intangible assets 15 1949 -

Uz azs 22.835 869

TOTAL ASSETS 371,297,931 357,340,928
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current [iabilities
Trade and other payables 16 Sex, B8, 06 §2.010,852
Current tax 17 1.567 5535 633,855
Amoeunts due to related party 20 35317 062 62,004,989
Short term Borrowings 18 7LRi4 279 65 645,510
Bank overdraft 13 3L663.521 -

224,221,123 214,295,315

Mon Current Liabilities

Long term borrowings 18 o 7R 40 47626
Deferred tax 19 213,542 1,299,486
9,126,891 2,247,312

Equity :
Issued Capital 21 136,350,000 136,350,000
Retained earnings 11.59% 920 4,448,501
117,949,920 140,798,301
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 71,297,934 357,340,928

The financial statements on pages 6 to 256 were approved for issue by the board of directors on
15 May 2024 and were signed on their behalf by:

|/

Anivuddh Gandlii - Director Murali Kdﬂﬁuéﬁﬁ{i}ry - Director

3

Emily Oduor - Head af Finamce
Page B




QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for non-casl income mud expenses:-
Depreciation

Income tax expense

Amortisation of intangibles

Gain on sale of Motor Vehicle

[nterest expense

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and lakilities:

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease,/ (Increase) in related party balances
{Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables
Crsh generated from operations

Interest paid
Tax paid
Net casit generated fronr operating nctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
FPurchase of Property, Flant and Equipment
Proceeds from sale of motor vehicle

Met casir psed 1 investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIMNG ACTIVITIES:
Movement in other financial liabilities

Net cask gensrated from /(used m} finaucing ackivitics

Met increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year (Note 13}

Cash and cash equivalent at end of year (Note 13)

2024 2023

Kshs, Kshs,
14,198,280 13,308,755
4,470,222 3,571,878
- (378,991)

5,502 -

(942,123) (356,045)
17,664,531 11,835,254
35587412 27 980,851
{4.961,915) (25,058,862)
(36,329,245) (34,600,547)
25,975,319 34,994,290
{25,202,145) 16,240,555
(4,930,578) 19,556,287
{17.664,531) (11,835,254)
{5.309,905) (9,650,769)
(27,965,014} (1,929,736)
(12.418.660) (4,582,475)
1,900,000 448,283
(10,318,660) {4,134,192)
855,183 1,962,264
5,055,183 1,962,264
(30,425,491) (4,101,664)
531,400 1,633,064
{29,897,091) 531,400
eSS =]
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION
Quantum Lubricants (E.A) Limited is incorporated and domiciled in Kenya under the Kenyan

Companies Act as a private company limited by shares. The address of its registered office and
principal place of business is L. R NO, 1870/11/236 The Pride Rock, No. 6 Donyo Sabuk Avenue, Off
General Mathenge Drive, P.O. Box 69952-00400, Nairobi, Kenva, The Principle activity of the company is
importation and wholesale of various lubricants and oils. The company alse manufactures lubricants
and oils under their brand name Motorol.

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern hasis and in ctompliance with the

International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities {IFRS for SMFEs) issned
by the International Accounting Standards Board. They are presented in Kenya Shillings(Kshs), The
measurement basis used is the historical cost basis except where otherwise stated in the accounting

policies below.

a Revenue recognition
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed. Revenue

from sale of services is recognised upon performance of the service and customer acceptance based on
the proportion of actual service rendered to the total services to he provided. Revenue is measured at

the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and VAT.

b Inventories
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of issues are caleulated
using the average cost (AVCO) method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of disposal.

¢ Impairment of tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrving amount of its tangible assels to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment less. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order ta determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount represents the greater of the net selling price and the value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than ils carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently veverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluztion increase,
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d Property, plant & equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment, including investment property, are measured at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying value only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will {ow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance is charged to the profit and loss account in the year to
which it relates.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Plant & Machinery 125%
Buildings 2.5%
Office equipment 12.5%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Furniture & Fittings 125%
Computers an%

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation rate, useful life or
residual value of an asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new
expectations.
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

e Intangible assets
Intangible assets are purchased computer software that is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. It is amortised over its estimated life of three years using the
straight-line method. If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in amortisation
rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the amortisation is revised prospectively to
reflect the new expectabions.

f Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as cperating
leases,

Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the company at the fair value of the
leased property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments} at the inception of the
lease. The correspending liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a
finance lease chligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way
as gwned assets.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued
g Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment property, intangible assets, and
investments in associates are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible Impairment, the recoverable
amount of any affected asset {or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying
amount. If estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated

recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immedately in profit or loss,

Similarly, at each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment by comparing the carrying
amount of each item of inventory (or group of similar items) with its selling price less costs to complete
and sell. If an item of inventory (or group of similar items) is impaired, its carrying amount is reduced
to selling price less costs to complete and sell, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss,
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related

assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount {selling price less costs to complete
and sell, in the case of inventories), but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

h Inventories :
Inventories of the company consists of enly Traded goods. Inventories are measured at lower of cost

and net realizable value. Cost of inventories is determined on the basis of Weighted average cost
method, after providing for obsolescence and other losses as considered necessary, Cost includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, reduction and conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the crdinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-basis.
i Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Trade
payables are obligations on the basic of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Interest bearing

liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
j Leasehold land
Leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease.

k Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date which expressed in foreign
currencies are ranslated into Kenya chilling at rates ruling at that date. The resulting differences from

conversion and translation are dealt with in the profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.

1 Borrowing costs

All borrowing cests are recognised in net profit or loss for the period i which they are incurred.
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m Cash and Cash equivalents
These comprise cash on hand and at bank, bank overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid investments

that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to and insignificant risk of

changes in value.
n Share capital, share premium and dividends
Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity. Any amounts

raceived from the issue of shares in excess of the par value are classified as 'share premium' in equity.

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are declared.
o Financial assets
Investments in quoted sharves are initially recognised at the transaction price and subsequently

measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is

determined using the quoted bid price at the reperting date.
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at the transaction price, Most sales are made on the

basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. Where credit is extended bevond
narmal credit terms, receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. At
the end of cach reporling period, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed o
determine whether there is any objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
p Financial liabilities
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with

the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Trade

pavables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Interest bearing
liabilities are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method.

q Provision
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result

of a past event and it is probable that an cutflow ef resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

r Cwrent Taxation
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profits defer from net profit as

reported in the income statement as it is adjusted in accordance with tax legislation. The company's

liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

s Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative {igures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in

the current year.
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing and Hire purchase commitments

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, which are thase where substantially all

the ricks and rewards of ownership of the asset have passed to the company, are capitalised in the
e, R "

Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables

based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off in the year in

which they are identified.

v Employee benefits - post-cmployment benefits

The company and its employees also contribule to the National Social Security Fund {NS5F), a national
defined contribution scheme. Contributions are determined by local statute and the company's
contributions are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

w Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profits defer from net profit as
reported in the income statement as it is adjusted in accordance with the Kenyan Income Tax Act. The
cempany's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance
sheet date.
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the differences between the carrying
amounts of the assets and the liabilities in the financial statements on the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of the taxable profit (known as temporary differences), and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differenices and deferred tax assets are
recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxable profits in the future and
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all ar part of
the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relale to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authorities and an entity within the company intends to settle its current tax sssets and liabilities on a

net basis.

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND [UDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standard
for Small and Medium-sized Entities requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires
management o exercise ils judgment in the process of applying company's accounting policies. The
critical areas of accounting estimates and judgments in relation to the prepavalion of these financial
statements are as set out on the next page.
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMEMNTS {continuation..)
a FProperty and equipment
Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining the useful lives and residual values of

property, plant and equipment based on the intended useful lives of the assets. Subsequent changes in
circumstances such as technological advances or prospective ulilisation of the assets concerned could

result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing from initial sstimates.
b Inventories
Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining other costs to be included in the cost of

inventories to the extent that they are incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.
- 2024 2023
Kshs. Kshs.
3 REVENUE
Sales 544,194,424 614,396,814
544.794,404 614,396,814
2023 2023
4 COST OF SALES Kshs. Kshs.
Opening inventories 58,884,165 43,825,302
Purchases 438,462,126 485,015,214
Plant Salary & Wages 18405275 18,537,613
Delivery Charges . 3602 300 2,799,624
Expenses on Purchase 33,410,282 27288194
Packaging Expenses 542750 992 600
Standardization Charges 554,859 155,625
Factory general expenses 1 et 3,136,000
Origination expense 30,006 -
Sample 2.835 1,920
Filter Bags 105 038 -
Calibration expense 130,000 125,600
563 127 699 581877692
Closing inventories (73,840,083) (68,884,1065)
400,281,676 512,993,527
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

2024 2023
5 OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE) Kshs. Kshs,
Unrealised exchange gain/ {lose) (3,687.238) (3,568,619
Realised exchange loss/ gain (2.662,682) {7,280,5600
Gain on disposal of vehicle 991,123 356,045
Discount received 47,846,314 4,950,230
Commission Income 15,614,888 -
Other income 126,592 -
56,028,097 (7.542,904)
2023 2023
& SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS Kshs, Kshs.
Advertisement & sales promotion 3,906,480 3468435
Premotions items -giveaways 2844703 1,495,707
Carriag outwards ) 418,515 -
Z16970 4,904,142
2024 2023
7 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Kshs. Kshs,
Employinent:
Salaries and wages 26,781,586 27,162,316
Staff medical 492,540 475,051
Staff welfare 582,503 434128
Total employment costs 27,857,189 28,071,495
Orther adminisiration costs:
Auditors remuneration 495,000 450,000
Telephone, postage emiail and fax 12,450 G672
Email and internet 209,602 190,125
Insurance 1,181,580 1,119,837
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,619 4.568
Entertainment 67,297 137,940
Postage, Telephone & Internet 54,2092 145,414
Printing & Stationery 203 189 580,543
Rent & Rates 11,023,851 7,611,367
Repairs & maintenance 669,622 1,653,669
Transport & Travelling 1,306,022 830,593
13,245,234 12,737,728
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

7 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (continued 2024 2023
Crther administration costs: Kshs, Kshs.
Legal & Consultancy Fees &,116,320 3,430,551
Security 128,800 193,200
Motor vehicle running expenses 2,756,645 1,678,481
Licences 19551 126,121
Wark permits 1.034,250 1,020,100
Computer expenses 167,319 143,480
MS5F 555420 169,880
Housing levy 372883 -
Increase/ (decrease) in bad debls provision 157,351 508,194
Training levy 24,250 24,700
Standard levy 400,00 400,000
Subscriptions 188,378 274,428
Electricity, gas and water 1,148,184 973,367

: 13,308,101 8942502
Total cther administration expenses 285,553,325 21,680,230
Total administrative expenses 56410414 449751,725
2024 2023
8 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Kshs. Kshs.
Dlepreciation of property, plant & equipment 4,410,222 3571878
Amortisation of intangible assels 5,502 .
Stamp duty - 34,040
Penalties and fines : 55,147 62,512
Donations 1.136,975 1,285,498
5007 845 4,953,928
2024 2023
9 FINANCE COSTS Kshs, Kshs.
Bank charges and commission 8791, 043 9,046,579
Facility fees 1614000 -
Interest on bank loans 15,261,397 11,684,383
Hire purchase charges 789,124 150,871
265,455,574 20,881,823
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2024

10 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The following iterrs have been recognised as expenses in determining profit befare tax:

2024 2023
Kshs. Kshs.
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 491,281 616 512,993 527
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,410,222 3,571,878
Post-emplovment benefits SHEA20 169,580
Auditor's remuneration 495,000 450,000
2024 2023
11 INVENTORIES Kshs. Kshs.
Raw Materials 32,931,082 18,168,531
Goods in Transit 7,080,090 7,533,999
Finished Goods 20,126,619 29,759,763
Trading Goods 1,432,198 1,432,198
Packaging Materials 12,275,144 11,989,674
73,846,083 68,884,165
2024 2023
12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Kshs. Kshs.
Trade receivables 206,085,908 190,223,225
Other receivables 23,626,239 5,147,742
Vat Receivable 1,189,885 1,232 49
Prepayments 37772 3,085,966
Deposits 3577342 2222530
238,201,206 201,891,961
Details of trade debtors are shown below
SN Particulars Less than 6 Months | 6 Months - 1 year 1-2 years Total
As at 31 March 2023
Undisputed Trade
(i) [Receivahble -
Considered Good 177,485,443 9,673,853 21,029,638 208,188,933
Undisputed Trade
... |Receivable - which
0 have significant
increase in credit risk 0 0 0 0
Undisputed Trade
(iii)| Receivable - credit
impaired i 0 ] 0

Page 18 __




QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

12 TRADE AND OTIER RECEIVABLES {continued...
Details of trade debtors are shown below [(continued..)

(iv)

Disputed Trade
Receivable -
Considered Geod

(v}

Disputed Trade

Receivable - which

have significant

increase in credit risk

(vi)

Disputed Trade
Receivable - credit
impaired

[J

i

U

0

0

Total

177,485 443

9 673,853

21,029,638

205,188,932

Less: Expected Credit
Loss (ECL)

2,102,964

2,102,964

Total Trade Receivable

177,485 443

9,673,853

18,926,674

206,085,969

Asal
31 March 2023

Undisputed Trade
Receivable -
Considered Good

170,611,183

2,101,528

19,455,129

192,168,840

(i1)

Undisputed Trade
Receivable - which
have significant
increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade
Receivable - credit
impaired

(iv)

Disputed Trade
Receivable -
Considered Good

—r

(v}

Disputed Trade
Receivable - which
have significant
increase in credit risk
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued...)

Details of trade debtors are shown below [continued..]

Disputed Trade
(vi)|Receivable - credit
impaired 0 0 0 0
Total 170,511,183 2,101,528 19,456,129 192,168,840
Less: Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) i o 1,945,613 1,945,613
Total Trade Receivable 170,611,183 2,101,528 17,510,516 190,223,227
13 CASI AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
: At 31 March At 31 March
At1 April 2023 Cash Flows Ad -z;; T- i
Kshs. Kshs. Kshs.
Cash in hand 68,917 13,761 BIEE 68,917
Cash at bank 462,483 221,269 683,752 462,483
Bank overdraft - (30,663521) (30863521} -
531,400 (30,428 491) (29,897 091) 531,400
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS (refer Page Page 26)
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS- SOFTWARE 2024 2023
Kshs, Kshs.
a) In Lse
Cost
At start of year - RE3,333
Additions 25,000 .
Atend of vear 25,1000 583,333
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At skart of year - 583,333
Annual amertisation 5,502 -
Atend of year 55412 583,233
Carrying amount
At end of year 19,498 d
b) Under Development
Cost
Additions 1,551,693 -
Atend of year 1,851,693 .

FPage 20




QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SIEMARCH 2024

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables

Other payables
Accrued expenses

17 TAXATION
a Statement of Comprehensive Income

Current tax applicable rate 30%
Deferred tax
Tax charge
b Statement of Financial Position
At1 April 2023
Corporation tax provision for the period
Tax paid
At 31 March 2024

¢ Reconciliation of tax charge to expected tax based on

accounting profit
Accounting profit before tax

Tax applicable rate of 30%

Tax effect of{expenses not deductable for tax )/non
Deferred tax provision for the year

Current tax charge

18 BORROWINGS

Non-current
Bank loans

Current
Short term Borrowings
Bank Inans- payable within one year

Total borrowings

2024 2023
Kshs. Kshs.
51,234 DRT 76,827,351
3525815 4,023 664
28 FTL 1,159,837
56,808,706 82,010,852
2024 2023
Kshs. Kshs.
6,300,605 7,340,860
T.080,056 378,991
7,346,661 7,719,851
633,855 2,943,764
6,303,605 7,340,860
15,368.805) (9,650,769)
1,567 555 633,855
14,498,280 13,308,755
4348484 3,992,627
1954120 3,348,234
LA G5s 378,991
7,340,661 7,719,851
2024 2023
Kshs, Kshs.
6784349 047 826
£,784 340 Q47 826
70,009,282 #9,545.619
1,854,097 i
71,864,279 65,645,619
78,618,638 70553445
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

18

19

(@)

BORROWINGS (continued...}

Bank facilities and security

The company has the following borrowing facilities:

Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited

An overdraft facility of Kshs. 3M and Invoice discounting facility of Kshs. 100M to finance working
capital requirements, repayable on demand.

A vehicle and asset finance facility of Kshs. 1,419,755/ to finance the purchase of motor vehicles and
other assets for use in the borrower's business.

Securities

The above facilities are secured by:

Securities held:

-First ranking over all assets debentures of Kshs. 1070

-Personal guarantee and indemnity of kshs 107M by Aniruddh Rinki Gandhi

-Corporate guarantee and indemnity of Kshs. 107M by MX Africa Ltd and Kshs, 73M by Maximus
International Ltd

-Deed of assignment and domiciliation of contract preceeds domiciling all payments dug from the
borrower to Car and General to an escrow account held with the bank duly acknowledged by the
debtors,

-Deed of subordination by SKG International Holdings PTE Lud subordinating the rights under all
preference shares amounting to Kshs. 136,250,000/ -

- Letter of Negative pledge

Securities required:

-Corporate guarantee and indemnity of Kshs. 107M by Maximus International Ltd (this shall replace the

security referred above)
Corporate guarantee and indemnity of Kshs, 107M by SKG Energy PTE Lid

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred Tax is calculated, in full, on all temporary differences under the liability method using a

principal tax rate of 30% (2023:30%).
The deferred tax assets are the tax effects of ex pected future income tax benefits relating to:

differences between the carrying amounts and tax written down values of property, plant and

equipment;

The company has recognised a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets because, on the basis
{b) of past years and future expectations, management considers it is probable thal taxable profits will be

available against which the future income tax deductions can be utilised,
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

2024 2023
Kxhs, Kshs.
At beginning of the period 1,299 486 G20,494
Income staternents (Credits) 1,043,056 378,991
At 31 March 2024 2342547 1,299 485
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19

i)

ii)

i)

DEFERRED TAX {continued...]
Deferred Tax assets and Deferred Tax credits in the profit and loss account are attributable ko
the following iterns:

(Credited) 2024 2023
toP&L Kshs. Kshs,
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation 1,043,056 2,342,542 1,299,486
: 1,043,056 2,342,542 1,299,486
Met Deferred tax liability 1,043,056 2,342,542 1,299,486

RELATED PARTIES

The company is related to other companies which are related through commen sharehelding or
commen directorships. The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

202 —
Kshs. Kshs.

Payments made to related parties as salaries and wages i :

Key management personnel and Director ?,134.21;2# 7,234,212

Amounts due from related party

SKG Energy PTE Limited 14,405,674 46,009,893

X Africa Limited . 1,064,233

Maximus Global FZE 14068413 16,123,407
28,534,287 63,197,533

Amounts due to related party

Quebec Petroleum Resources Lid 36,200,742 a7.0658.696

Maximus International Limited 2,657 326 24,946,293

M Africa Limited 13,749,804 -
53,217,062 62,004,989
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20 RELATED PARTIES (rontinued,.)

iv) Additional information to the financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024

Related party Disclosures:

Names of the related parties and description of relationship

a) List of Related Parties

[Description of Relationship

|Name of related party

Holding company

MX Africa Limited

Holding company of MX Africa Limited

Maximus International Limited

Subsidiary Company of Maximus

Maximus Global FZE

[Subsidiary Company of Maximus Global

Maximus Lubricants LLOC

| Person having control over the company |

Aniruddh Gandld

Enterprises over which person/close family
member have control or significant

SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly known as SKG
International Heldings Pte Ltd)

influence

Quebec Petroleum Resources Lid

Anirnddh Gandhi

Directors and their relatives

R 5 Gandhi (Relative of Aniruddh Gandhi)

Murali Krishrnamoorth y

: Year Ended an
Particulars
Salary to Director and their Relatives
R S Gandhi 7234712
Purchase of Goads
Maximus International Limited 70,782
Maximus Global FZE 2417357
SKG Energy PTE LTD 59,675,731
Commisssion Expense
Maximus Intarnational Limited 836,933
Loan received during the year
MX Africa Limited 12,685,751
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

20

iv)

21

22

RELATED PARTIES {continued..)

Additional information to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 (continued..)

b) Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties (continued..)

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Amounts Owed to related parties

as at
P Year Ended on | Year Ended on
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Trade Pavables
|COuebec Petroleum Resources Lid 36,909, 742 37,058,696
Waximus International Limited 1,820,393 24,946,293
Trade Feceivable
Maximus Global FZE 14,068,413 16,123,407
Maximus International Limited L F
SKG Energy PTE LTD 11,754,062 43,298,981
|Other Receivable
SEG Enetgy PTE LTD 2,710,912 2710912
Loan Receivable and Tnterest receivable®
WX Africa Limited 631,154 1,064,233
Laan Pavable and Interest payable
WX Africa Limited 14,381,148
[Commission pavable
haximus International Limited 836,533 &
Salary Payable
E S Gandhi 62,851 a2, 851
20249 2023

SHARE CAPTITAL Kshs. Kshs.
AUTHORISED, ISSUED & FLILLY PAID LF -
1,000 Ordinary shares of Kshs 100/= each T80, 00000 100,000
135,250 Redeemable Preference Shares of Kshs 1000/= each 130, 250,008 136,250,000

136,350,000 136,350,000

The preference shares hold no dividend coupon and are repayable at the discretion of the company

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingencies at the year end.
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QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A) LIMITED
TAX COMPUTATION - 2024
FIN Nk P 051 366 334 H

Eshs, Kshs.
Prodit before tax 14,498 250
A
Depreciation 4.410,222
Amorteation 5,A02
Unrealized exchange loss 5,687,238
Donations & Cift iterns 1,136,975
Fines and penalties 55,147
Repairs and maintenance 45,000
Movement in provision for Bad dabts 157,351
11,497,435
25,995,715
Less:
Wear and tear deductions (3,992,577)
Gain on disposal of vehicle (991,123)
(4,983, 7000
Adjusted taxable profit for the year 21012015
Total taxl'labi]it}r i 30% 6,303,605
Less: Withholding Tax as per Itax
Less: Installment Tax paid (4,590,000)
Less: Advance tax paid (114
Tax payable/ [refundable) 1,702,205
Installment Tax to pay Rounded
1st installment Tax due on or before 20/07 /2024 1,733,491 1,734,000
Ind installment Tax due on or before 20,/08 /2024 1,733,401 1,734,000
Ard instaliment Tax due on or before 20/ 12/ 2024 1,735,451 1,734,000
4th installment Tax due on or before 20/03,/ 2025 1,733,451 1,734,000
5,933,965 #,936,000.00
WEAR AND TEAR SCHEDULE
Computer
Class 11 Class I Class TV suftware
2B 259 10L0% 2500 Total
Kshs. Kshs Kshs. Kshs Kehs.
WDV as at 01.04.2023 262,509 2,208,665 15,926,801 106,275 18,504, 25
Additions 52500 6,171,008 415 467 25,000 6,656,967
Disposals {908,877} {508.877)
315,009 TATD 788 16,345 268 131,275 24,252,340
Wasar and tear allowance
(see next sheet) (100.628) (1976013} (LB874.261) HL’E*?S-] (3,592,577)
W.DY asat 31.03.2024 214,381 5,494,776 14 471 006 RO 600 HE2607603




QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A} LIMITED
TAX COMPUTATION -2024

PIN NO: F 051 368 334 0

Additions of Motor Vehicles during the yvear

Model Reg Mo, Class Cost Restrictior Amourt
subjected to
Investrnent
deduction

Truck EID 479y Cormmereial 317100000 N/SA 3,171,000

Prado LM TORW Saloon 6, 00, (N0 3,000,000 000,00

10,071, 000.00 300,000,000 6,171, 0000

Date: _

Director Directar
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